oy Fondona Savvias

CHARTEREDACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Indiabulis Investment Advisors Limited
(“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the
“Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, the profit and other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (*SAs”). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“1CAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethicai responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Financial Statements.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 34 1 A b) to the Financial Statements, describes that the Company has
recorded provisions for impairment due to expected credit losses on certain financial assets as at March
31, 2023 on an estimated basis, in respect of losses that may arise dependent upon future developments
including inter alia, the uncertainties due to the effects of unravelling of the Covid-19 pandemic on the
Company’s business, Qur apinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Office: D 118, Saket, New Delhi — 110017 Phone: +91 11 4166 3630

NAL - Independent auditor’'s report — March 31, 2023




Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s Directors’
report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
cbtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs (financial position), profit or loss {financial performance including other comprehensive
income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and campleteness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also
responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole,
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are consicered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section143(3)(i} of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Cur conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the *Annexure A’, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so

far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,

lIAL - Independent auditor’s report — March 31, 2023

the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the relevant books of account.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

{(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has not paid / provided any remuneration to its directors during the year ended
March 31, 2023.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company, as detailed in note 41 to the Financial Statements, has disclosed the
impact of pending litigations on its financial position as at March 31, 2023.

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

i) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv) a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entities (*Intermediaries™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in

the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

v) As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

vi) The Company has not declared/paid any dividend during the year and subsequent to
the year-end.

For Ajay Sardana Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registratign \ 016827N

ufMukhi

Partner

Membership No.099719

New Delhi, May 25, 2023
UDIN: 23099719BGZADS1030
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited for the year ended March 31, 2023

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditors’® Report to the members of
the Company on the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023, we report the following:

(i} (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its
property, plant and equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased
manner. [n accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment were verified during
the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties. Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is
not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benamt Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

(if) (a) The Company’s inventories comprising of properties held for resale have been physically
verified during the year by the management of the Company. In our opinion, the frequency of such
verification is reasonable, and procedures and coverage as followed by management were appropriate.
No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of
five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of the security of current
assets at any point of time during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(iti) The Company has not made investments in and provided any guarantee or security to companics,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. However, the Company has granted secured
and unsecured loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships and to other parties during the
year in respect of which:

{this space has intentionally been left blank)
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

(iii) (a) During the year the Company has provided loans to companies as follows:

Loans (Amount
in Rs. lakhs)

Aggregate amount granted /provided during the year

- Others 26,350.03
Balance outstanding as at batance sheet date in respect of above cases
- QOthers 17,870.25

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments in or provided security to or
provided guarantees to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the
year. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the terms and conditions of the grant of loans and advances in the nature
of loans during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has granted loans during the year to companies where the
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayment or
receipts are regular,

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted
to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more than
ninety days.

(e} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not extended / granted fresh loans during the year to the
respective parties to settle the dues of the existing loans.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on elause 3(iii)(f) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, to
the extent applicable to it. The Company has not entered into any transactions in respect of investments,
security and guarantees covered under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the
public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable,

{vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not

prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services provided by
it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi} of the Order is not applicable.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
[ndiabulls Investment Advisors Limited for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

(vii) (a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective | July 2017, these statutory dues have been subsumed
into Goods and Services Tax (“GST).

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect
of undisputed statutory dues including GST, Provident fund, Employees® State Insurance, Income-Tax,
Duty of Customs, Cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited by the
Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of GST, Provident fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other statutory dues were in arrears as at
March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to GST, Provident Fund, Employees
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Value Added Tax or Cess or
other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously
unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
as income during the year.

(ix) (2) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings
or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

{(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any gevernment authority.

{(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not taken any term loan during the year. In respect of the
outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year, such loans were applied for the purpose for which
the loans were obtained.

(d) The Company has not raised any funds on short-term basis during the year. Accordingly, reporting
on clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(e} The Company does not have any subsidiaries. Accordingly, reporting on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order
is nat applicable.

() The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reparting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the
Order is not applicable.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible} during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information
and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in the Standards on
Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the course of the audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) are not
applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size
and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during
the year.

(xv) In our opinion, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
its Directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Company is not
required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Hence, reporting
under clause 3(xvi)a) and clause 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of the
Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016)
does not have more than one CIC as part of the Group.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit. The

Company had incurred a cash loss of Rs. 3,922.54 lakhs during the immediately preceding financial
year.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023 (continued)

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a periad of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

{xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions related
to corporate social responsibility in terms of section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.
Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)}(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For Ajay Sardana Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016827N

Mermbership No.099719
New Delhi, May 25, 2023
UDIN: 23099719BGZADS1030
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited for the year ended March 31, 2023

Repbrt on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Indiabulls Investment
Advisors Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAT™),
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note™) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these Financial Statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these Financial Statements.

lAL - Independent auditor's report — March 31, 2023




Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the Company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these Financial Statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal contro] stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Ajay Sardana Associates
Chartered Accountants

Partner

Membership No.099719

New Delhi, May 25, 2023
UDIN: 23099719BGZADS1030
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Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 Mareh 2023
(All amounts in Rs Lakls unless stated othenvise)

Assels
Non-current nssets

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets
Financial asscts

Loans

Trade receivables

Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets(net)
Other non-current assets
Total non-current asscts

Current asscts
Inventories
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans
Other financial assels
Current tax assets (net)
Other current assels
Total current assets

TFota) assets

Equity and liabilitics
Equity

Equity shure capital
Other equity

Total equity

Linbilities

Non-current linbilities

Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Provisions

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial ligbilitics
Bomrowings
Cther financial labilities
Other current liabilitics
Provisions
Total current liabiltics

Total equity and liabilities

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these financial statements.
This js the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date,

For Ajay Sardana Associates

Ralul Mukhi
Partner

Membership No. 099719
New Delhi: 25 May 2023

Note

4(n)
4(b)

- --BE I - )

11
12

14
15
16

17
18

19
20

21
22
23
24

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

b e

Amiteshwar Choudhary
Whole time Dircctor
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Akshay Kumar Tiwary
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Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limtited

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

{All amonnts in Rs Lakhs unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended  For the year ended

Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
I Revenue from operations 25 290.01 81i.61
Il Net gain on de-recognition of financial assets at amortized cost 0.54 16.15
I Other income 26 1.713.01 714.95
IV ‘Tota revenue (I+I1+I1I) 2,003.56 1,542.71
V  Expenses
Employee benefits expenses 27 28234 513.14
Finance costs 28 0.93 0.80
Depreciation and amortisation expense 14.76 20.97
Impairment losses 29 1,200.00 4,728.24
Other expenses 30 67.49 179.25
Total expenses (V) 1,565.52 5,442.40
VI Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (IV-V) 438.04 (3,829.69)
VIl Exceptional items - -
VIII Trofit/(Loss) before tax (VI-VII) 438.04 (3,899.69)
IX Tax cxpense 3
Current tax - 0.21
Deferred tax (77.71) 266.53
Totnl tax expenses (77.71) 266.74
X Profit/(Loss) for the year (VIII-IX) 515.75 (4,166.43)
XI  Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassificd to profit or loss
(A)-Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans 3.16 (19.12)
(B)-Income tux relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss (0.80) 4.81
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) (A+B) 2.36 {14.31)
Xl Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (X+XI) 518.11 {4.180.74)
XIIT Earnings per equity share (Rs. 10 per sharc) 32
(1) Basic (Rs) 0.15 (L17)
(2) Diluted (Rs) 0.15 {117
Face value per equity share 10.00 10.00
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date,
For Ajay Sardana Associntes For and on behalf of thic Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0{6827N (\€L uw
) /\')g,v)"-wf\/
Rahul Mukhi 7 Amiteshwar Choudhary Akshay Kumar Tiwary Rakesh Sharma Decpnk Chadda
Partner Whole time Director Dircctor Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary
Membership No. 099719 DIN: 01679050 DIN: 00366348

New Delhi: 25 May 2023 New Delhi: 25 May 2023




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 Mavch 2023
(Al amounts in Rs Lakhs unless stated othenvise)

A Cash flow from operating activities :

Cash and cash cquivalents at the close of the year (D +E )

Year entled
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

Net profit/(loss) before tax 438 04 (3.899.69)
Adjusiments for
Interest Income from Inter Corporate Deposits {1,463.16) (441.39}
Unwinding of jnterest income {175.70) (224.22%
Net gain on derccognition of leases - (.17}
Net gain on de-recognilion of financial assets at amortized cost (0.54) (16.15)
Interest on Fixed Deposits (12.718) (11.57)
Extess provisions written back (55.46) {22.57)
Net loss on modification of financial assets - 4.26
Loss an salef scrapmng ol fixed assets 799 1.54
Finance costs 093 0.80
Depreciation and Ameortisation 14.76 20.97
Provision for Gratuity and Compensated Absences 939 13.87
Share-based paymenl expense (1897 17.86
Provision lor impairment toss due to expected credit loss 1,200.00 472824
Operating (lossVprofit before changes in working capital (55.50) 170.83
Adjustments for:
Loans 139.81 310.56
inventories - (12023
Trade receivables and other financial assets 32200 2,134.71
Other non-current assels 382504 8,497.52
Other current assels [8.03 (16.50)
Provisions (35.17) (34.69)
Other current liabilitics (176.54) 181.01
Caslt gencrated from / {used in) operations 4,037.86 11,123.21
Direct taxes (paid Yrefund (net) (78.34) 206.35
Net cash generated vom operating nctivities 3,959.52 11.329.56
" Cash flow fram investing netivities :

Purchase of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets - (0.98)
[nler-cur]mxtmie deposits (g,n'en toyrepayment received from €5.650 75) (11.634.50)
fellow subsidiary companies (net)

Sale of fixed assets 422 00}

Interest Received 1.475.78 453.92

Net eash used in investing activitics (45170.75) {11.181.55)
Cash flow from finnncing activities

Proceeds from/(Repayment of) Secured Loans (Including Current Malurity of Long Term (164) (4.49)

Debt) (Net

Payment of Leasc linbilities {including interest on leasc linbilities) . (0.68)

Praceeds from/(Repayment of} Sltort Term Borrowings (Net) 15.00 -

Interest paid {0.93) 10.73)

Net eash generated fromfused in) Bnanciop activities 13.03 (5.90)

Net (teerense)incerense in cash nni cash cquivalents ( A+B+C) (193.20) 14211

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note ii. below) 210.20 63.09
12.00 210.20




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amownts in Rs Lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year cnded 31 March 2023 (continued):
(Al amounts in Rs. Lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Notes;

i. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Methed” as set out in Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) - 7 on
‘Statemcent of Cash Flows * as preseribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014,

ii. Cash and cash equivalents includes:

As at Asat

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash and cash cquivalents (Refer Note-12) 12.00 210.20
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 12.00 210.20
The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report ol even date
For Ajay Sardana Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants -~
Firm Registration No. 016827N M’

5@ - L/
741.. g O

Rahul Mukhi Amiteshwar Choudhary  Akshay Kumar Tiwary Rakesh Sharma Deepak Chadda
Partner Whole time Director Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No. 09971 DIN: 01679090 DIN: 00366348

New Deli: 25 May 2023 New Delhi: 25 May 2023




Indinbulls Investment Advisors Limited

Statemeal of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 Morch 2023

(All amounts in Rs Lakhs unless stated otherwise)

A. Equity Share Capital

{i) Current reporting vear

Balance ag at 1 April 2022

Changes in Equity Share
Capital due to prior period
eryors

Restated halance asat 1
April 2022

Changes in equity share
capital during the current
year

Balance s at 31 March
2023

35,550.00

35,550.00

35,550,00

(ii) Previous reporting year

Balance as at I April 2021

Changes in Equity Share
Capital due to prior perlod
crrors

Restated balnnee us at £
April 2021

Changes in equity share
capital during the current
year

Balance as at 31 March
2022

35,550.00 - 35,550.00 - 35,550.00
B. Other Equity
(i} Current reporiing venr
Reserves and surplus
Particul i i
frlicars Share op t;:::unl:::smndmg Other component of equity Retained carnings Total
Balance ag at 1 April 2022 T 2881 4.91 (12,551.38) (12,517.66)
Changes in accounting policy/prior peried errors - - - -
Restated balnnce at the beginning of the current
reporling year 28.81 4.91 (12,551.38) (12,517.66)
Total Other Comprehensive loss for the current year - - 2,36 2.36
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - 51575 515.75
Transferred from share options oulstanding account - - 0.39 0.39
Transferved to retained camings (0.39) - - (0.39)
Employec share-based payment (credit) (18.97) - - (18.97}
Balance ns at 31 March 2023 9.45 4.91 {12,032.88) (12,018,52)
(ii) Previous Reporting year
Reserves and surplus
i i Tetal
Particulars Share opg:::uul:a:slandlng Other componeni of equity Retained earnings ¢
Balance as at 1 April 2021 11.34 4.91 {8,371.03) {8,354.78)
Chongpes in aceounting policy/prier period crrors - - - -
Restated balance nt the beginning of the previous
reporling year 11.34 4.91 (8,371.03) {8,354.78}
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the previous
yoar - - (14.31) {14.31)
Dividends - - - -
Profit/ (Loss) for the year - - (4,166.43) (4,166.43)
Transferred from share options ountstanding account - - 0.39 0.39
Transferred to retained camnings (0.39) - - 039
Employce share-based paymenit (credit) 17.86 - - 17.86
Balance as at 31 March 2022 28.81 4,91 {12,551.38) (12,517.66)
The accompanying notes are an integeal part of these financial statements,
This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred in our report of even date.
For Ajay Sardana Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Dircetors
Chartered Accountants .
Firm Registration No. 016827N .f J/\ W
/ N
Rahul Mukht Amiteshwar Choudhary  Akshay Kumar Tiwary Rakesh Sharma Deepak Chadda
Partner Whole time Director Director Chicf Financial Officer Company Scereiory
Mcembership No. 099719 DIN: 016750%0 DIN: 00366348
New Delhi: 25 May 2023 New Delhi: 25 May 2023




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Notes to the financlal statenients for the yenr ended 31 March, 2023
(All amonnis in Rs Lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Note - I

Company Overview:

Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Brokerage Limited) (“the Company™) was incarporated on August
22, 2008. On January 15, 2009 the Company received a certificate of registration from the Securities and Exchange Board of India
{"SEBI") under sub -section | of section 12 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 10 carmy on its business as stock and
share brokers. Accordingly, all provisions of the Sccuritics and Exchange Board of India Aet, 1992, and rules and regulations relating
thereto are applicable 1o IIAL. During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Compaeny surrendered its trading membership in all segments
with the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and in cash segment with the BSE Ltd. {BSE). On September 17, 2013, SEBI,
vide its letter to the NSE and BSE, confirmed the cancellation of the Company’s registration certificate with effect from March 28, 2013,
On March 28, 2013, NSE issued a notification approving the Company’s request for surrender of membership in all segments.

In accordance with the provisions of section 13 and ofher applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Incorporation) Rules, 2014, the members of the company at their Extraordinary General Meeting held on April 29, 2017, accorded their
approval to change the name of the Company. The Company has since received fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon change
of name from the Registrar of Companies, National Capital Territory of Delhi & Haryana dated May 12, 2017, in respect of the said
change. Accordingly, the name of the Company was changed from Indinbuils Brokerage Limited to Indiabulls Invesiment Advisors
Limited.

In accordance with the approval of the members of the Company, vide special resolution passed at their Extraordinary general mecting
held on April 29, 2017 and of the Registrar of Companics, National Capital Territory of Delhi & Haryana, and pursuant 1o the provisions
of Section 13 and other applicable provisions, il any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with applicable rules made thereunder, new set of
Memorandum of Association (MOA) of the Company in accordance with Table A of Schedule 1 of the Companies Act, 2013, inter alia
modifiring sub clause 5 of the erstwhile main object of the MOA, as reproduced below, was adopted as follows:

1) To act as investment advisors end/or distributor for all third party preduct in financial service sector including insurance products such
as life, pension, fire, motor & other products and to carry on the business of insurance either dircetly or as an insurance agent, insurance
broker or othenwise.

2) To engage in the business of insurance intermediation and acting as corporate agent, direct insurance brokers, composite insurance
brokers for life, general & health, re-insurance brokers, insurance consultant, assessors, valuers and surveyors, for the purpose of soliciting
or procuring life or general or hicalth insurance business for clients and insurance companies

3) To camy on the business of praviding business process outsourcing and all other services to insurers and insurance intermediaries
including but not limited to data entry, procurement, compilation, analysis and processing, report generation, discrepancy marking, quality
check of proposal forms, processing of claims and claims suppori eetivities, providing of infrastructure and communication support

4) To acquire, hold / sell properties, buildings, farms, lands tenements and such other moveable and immovable properties and 1o rent, let
on hire and manage them and 1o act as consultants, Mnancial advisors and to give expert advice and advice on acquisition and commercial
exploitation of real cstate and suggest ways and means for improving efficiency in real estate development and 1o act as real estate agent
and immovable property dealers.

5) To carry on in India or elsewhere the business to undentake, develop, build, design, organize, promote, finance, operate, maintain or
manage Industrial Parks, Special Economic Zone{s) (SEZ), including Multi product and Mulliservice Industrial Parks, SEZ, Software
Parks, IT Parks and to act as developers, co-developer of Industrial Parks, Special Economic Zene(s) and any other industrial, commercial
or social infrastructure er other facilities necessary for the development of Industrial Parks. Special Economic Zone(s), Software Parks, IT
Parks including development, construction, Tun repair, maintain, decorate, improve, remodel, build, operate and manage roads, bridges,
highways, gaslines, gardens, public places, buildings, and other structures, develepments, utilities etc. and to do all other related acts,
deeds and things as may be necessary from time {o time.

During the year ended March 31, 2018, in accordance with the applicable provisions of the relevant Real Estate Regulation Act in various
states in India, the Company was registered as a real estate agent and has commenced such activities subseguent to obtaining the aforesaid
registrations.

Chartered

Accountants




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023
(Al amoruns in Rs Lakhs nnless stated othenvise)

Note-2
2.1 General information nnd stafement of complinnce with Ind AS

These financial statements (*financial statements’) of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2013
(by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (*MCA’)). The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods presented.

The financial statements for the ycar ended 31 March 2023 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board of Direclors on 25 May
2023,

2.2 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in Indian Rupee which is the functional currency of the Company. These financial
statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair velue or
smortized cost at the end of cach reporting period, as explained in the accounting policics below. Hislorical cosl is generally based on the
fatr value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sefl an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurcment date.

The statement of cash flows have been prepared under indivect method.

2.3 - Current versus Non Curreat Classificntions

The Company presents asseis and linbilitics in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset as eurrent when it is

(i). Expected to be realized or intended to seld or consumed in normmal operating cycle

(1i). Held primarily for the purpose of trading

(iii). Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(iv). Cash or cash equivelent unless restricted from being exchanged or used 1o settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

All other assets are clossified as non-current.

A liability is current when ;

(i}. [t is expected 1o be settled in normal operating cycle

{it}. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

{iii). It is due to be settled within twelve months afler the reporting period, or

(iv). There is no unconditional right to defer the setilement of liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifics all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash cquivalents. The
Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Note-3
Significant Accounting Policies:

1) Use of estimates and fudgements:
In preparing these Ind AS financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of asscts, liabilitics, income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from thesc estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized prospectively.

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 (COVID-19):

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on its business
operations and financial position, based on ils review of current indicators of future economic conditions. The impact assessment of
COVID-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration and accordingly the impact may be
different from that estimated as al the date of approval of these financial stalemenis. The Company will continue to monitor any
material changes to [ulure economic conditions.




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023
(Al amounts in Rs Lakhs unless stared othenvise)

Note - 3 (continued):

b)

)

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of services (“performance obligations™) to customers in an smount that reficcts the
consideration the Company has received or expects 10 reccive in exchange for these services (“transaction price”). When there is
uncertainty as to collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, rebates, scheme
allowances, price concessions, incentives, and returns, if any, as specified in the contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes
laxes collected from customers an behall of the government. Accruals for discounts/incentives and retums are estimated (using the

most likely method) based on accumulated experience and underlying schemes and agreements with customers,

‘The Company has adopted Ind AS - 115 Revenue from contracts with customers, with effect from 1st April, 2018. Ind AS - 115
establishes principles for reporting information about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenucs and cash flows arising

from the contracts with its customers and replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts

The Company has adopted Ind AS — 115 using the cumulative effect method whereby the effect of applying this standard is
recognized at the dote of initial application (i.e. 1st April, 2018). Accordingly, the comparative information in the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss is not restated. Impact on adoption of Ind AS -~ 115 is not material. -

» Income from Brokernge and commission is recognized on accrual basis, generally as set out under the terms of
contracts/agreements with respective customers.

* Income from fee based consultancy is recognized on an acerual basis in terms of the contracisfagreements with respective
customers.

» Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method as set out in Ind AS 109 - Financial Instrumenis: Recognition
and Measurement, when it is prebable that the economic benefits associated with the wransaction will flow te the Company and the
amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a
financinl asset or a financial liability (or group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or
interest expense over the relevant period.

Taxes on Income:

Current tax

Current Tax is determined at the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable profit for the year as per the Income-tax Act, 1961.
Taxable profit differs from *profit before tax” as reported in the financial statement of profit and loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that arc never taxable or deductible. The Entity"s current tax is
caleulated vsing tax rate that has been enacted by the end of the reporting period,

Deferred tax

Deferred 1ax is recognized on temporary dilferences between the camying amounts of assels and liabilities in the financial statements
and the comresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred 1ax liabilities are generally recognized for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences 1o the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which these deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises fram the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and linbilities in a transaction that affeets neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufTicient taxable profits will be availeble to allew all or part of the asset to be recovered.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax conseguences that would follow (rom the mannet in which the
Entity expects, at the end of the reporting period, 1o recover or seitle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred ax
lizbilitics and assels are measured at the tax rates that nre expected to apply in the period in which the linbility is seliled or the asset
realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacied or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current and delerred tax ase recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognizad in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respeclively.




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023
(AN amounts in Rs Lakhs unfess stated othenvise)

Note -3 (continued):

d)

¢

g)

h)

Praperty, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipiment are initially recognized at cosl. Cosl comprises the purchase price and any directly atiributable
cost 1o bring the asset to its working condition for its intended use. An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the nsset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment is provided on straigit-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to
the Compapies Act, 2013. Assets costing less than Rs. 5,000 each are [ully depreciated in the vear of capitalization.

intangible nssets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired scparntely are carried al cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recegnized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

The estimated useful life of the intangible assels and the amortization period are reviewed at the end of cach financial year and the
amontization perod is revised 1o refiect the changed pattern, if'any.

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future cconomie benefits are expected rom use or disposal. Gains or

.losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured at the dilference between the net disposal proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset, and are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Impairment of asscts

The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, the Company cstimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net
selling price and its value in use. If' such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to
which the asset belongs is less than its canying amount, the carrying amount is reduced 10 its recoverable amount. The reduction is
treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. IT a1 the Balance Sheet date there is an indication
Ut if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the
recoverable amount.

Borrowing Cosis:
Bormowing costs that are atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of cost
of such assets. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Asscts:

Provisions arc recognized only when there is o present abligation as a result of past events and when a reliable estimate of the
amount of obligation can be made. Contingent liability is disclosed for (1) Possible obligations which will be confinmed only by
future events not wholly within the control of the Company or (2) Present ebligations arising from past events where it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to scttle the obligation or a relinble estimate of the amount of the obligation
cannot be mude. Contingent Assets are not recognized in the financial statements since this may resull in the recognition of income
that may never be realized.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial assct of one entity and a financial lability or equity instrument off
another.




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Notes to the financial stutements for the year ended 31 March, 2023
(All amonts in Rs Lakhs wuniess stated otherwise)

Note 3 (continued):

i}

Financial instrumerts (continucd)
Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
All financia! assets are recopnized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset.

Subsequent mensurement

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A *debt instrument’ is measured ot the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

{2) The assel is held within & business madel whose ebjective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

(b) Contractual terms of the nssct give rise on specified dales to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (*SPPI’)
on the principal amount outstanding,.

After initinl measurement, such {inancia! assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (*EIR")
method. Amortized cost is enleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortizalion is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applics to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument a¢ FYTOCI (Fair Value through OCI)
A *debt instrument” is classified as at the FVTOCI il both of the following criteria are met:

(#) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling 1he financial assets, and
(b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Deht instruments included within the FVTOQC! eategory are measured imtially os well as at each reporting date at fair value.

Fair value movements are recognized in the OCl. However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals
and forcign exchange gain or loss in the profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized
in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest eamed whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported os
interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FYTPL (Fair value through profit or loss)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FYTOCTI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may eleet to classify a debt instrument, which othenvise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at
FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only il doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency
(referred 10 o5 ‘accounting mismalch®). Debt instruments included within the FYTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the profit and loss.

Equity Investments

All equity investments in entities other than tax free bonds and fixed deposits are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which
are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as
at FVTOCT or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on
inilial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTQCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts [fom OCI 1o P&L, even on sale of investmeni. However,
the Company may transfer the cumulative guin or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL calegory are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit and loss.
Investments in tax free bonds and fixed deposits are measured at amortized cost.
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Note 3 (continued):

i) Finaneial tnstruments (continued})

11

Derecoguition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a pant of a financial assel or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

= The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

+ The Company has transferred its rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a *pass-threugh’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has (ransferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (1) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applics expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial ossets that are debt instcuments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt sccurities, deposits, trade
receivables and bank balance.

b) Trade reczivables under Ind AS 18.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been
a signilicant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-moenth ECL is used
10 provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used.

1f, in a subsequent period, credit qualily of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts te recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Financinl liabilitics

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial linbilitics are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instrumenis in an effective hedge, as appropriate, All financial Habilities are
recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly auributable transaction costs. The
Company's financial liabilities include irade and other payables,

Subsequent measurcment
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilitics at amortized cost

After initial measurement, such financial liabilities nre subsequently measured at amoriized cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are in profit or loss when e liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that arc an integral part of the EIR. The
EIR amortization is included in finance costs in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade payables and other
contractual liabilities.

Financial Eabilitics at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss include financial linbilitics held for trading and financia! liabilities designated
upon initinl recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial linbilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This categery also includes derivative financial instruments entered into
by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109.

Gains or losses on linbilities held for trading are recogmzed in the profit or loss

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criterin in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gainsflosses
attribulable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in QOCI. These gains/losses are not subsequently transferred to profit and
loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Al other changes in fair volue of such liability
are recagnized in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designnted any financial liability as at fair value through
profit and loss.
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Note 3 (continued):

i)

)]

k)

Financinl instruments (continued)

Derecognition

A ﬁnaniial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derccognition of the eriginal liability and the recognition
of o new }ability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or Toss.

Offsctting Mnancial instrements
Financial assets and liobilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enlorceable right
to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or rcalize the asset and settle the liability

simultancously.

The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Lenses

The Company assesses at contract inception whetlier a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Conmpsny as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measureinent approach for all leases, except for shori-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Company recognizes lease linbilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use
the underlying asscts.

{i) Right-of-use Asseis (ROU Assets)

The Company recognizes right-of-use assels at the commencement date of the lease (i.c., the date the underlying assel is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impatrment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of Jease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at of before the commencement date less any lense incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are deprecialed on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. If ownership of
the leased assct tmnsfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the eost reflccis the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is caleulated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

(i} Lease Liabilitics

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments 10
be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives reccivable, variable lense payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expeeted to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if’ the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to
terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses (unless they are incurred
to produce inventories) in the period in which the cvent or condition that triggers the paymtent occurs. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Company uscs its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the
interest rute implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. Aficr the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the camrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g.. changes to future
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such leasc payments) or a change in the assessment of an
option 16 purchase the underlying asset. Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and
lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assels

The Company applies the shert-term lease recognition exemption to ils shori-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a puschase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assels
recognition exemplion to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on shon-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense on 4 straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Note 3 (continued):

k)

m)

Leases (continued)

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial dircel costs
incurred in negolinting and amranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the
lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenug in the period in which they are eamed.

Inventories
Inventories comprising of propertics held for sale are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value
Recent accounting pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companics
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rulcs as issued from time Lo time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable
from April t, 2023, as below:

Ind AS I - Presentation of Financial Statcments

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information, together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions of primary users of general purpose financinl sintemenis. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any
significant impact in its [inancial stalements.

Ind AS 8 = Accounting Policies, Chunges in Accounting Estimates and Errors
The amendments will help entitics to distinguish belween accounting policics and accounting estimates. The definition of a change

in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of zecounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates
are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if
accounting policies require items in financial statemenis to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncentainty, The
Company does not expect this amendment to have any sigrificant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 12— Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transaclions such as leases and decommissioning obligations.
The amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in parugraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so

that it no longer applies ta transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary difTerences.

The Company is ¢valualing the impact, if any, in its financial statements.
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Note -4
Gross Bloek (At Cost) Accumulated Deprecintion/Amortization Net Block
Additions Adjustments/ Additions Adjustments
Asat during the Sales during Asat Asat during the during the Asat Asat Asat

01 April 2022 year year 31 Narch 2023 01 April 2022 year year 31 March 2023 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Particulars :
a). Property, Plant & Equipment
Office Equipment 5.4 - 044 4.70 4,36 0.66 0.39 4.62 0.08 0.78
Vehicles 36.79 - - 36.79 20.98 4.73 - 2572 1.07 15.81
Furniture and fixtures 3445 - 33.03 1.42 19.36 1.72 0.89 0.19 1.23 15.09
Computers 74.08 - 28.95 45.13 72.53 088 2893 44.48 0.65 1.55
TOTAL ()} 150.46 - 62,42 58.04 117.23 7.99 50.21 75.01 13.03 33.23
b). Intangible Asscts
Software 84.55 - - 84.55 44.43 6.77 - 51.20 3335 40.12
TOTAL (L) 84.55 - - 84.55 44.43 6.77 - 51.20 33.35 A0.12
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Nofe-35
Loans-Non current
[at amortized coit)

Deposits far Underwriting/dixtribution of real estate projects
Security Deposils
Corsidered pood-Unsecured

Note-6
Trade receivables-Non-cument

Asot
31 March 2023

Asat
31 March 2022

1.823.13 1467353
1.523.13 1.673.54
Asal Asat

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Unsecured, considered goad 21672 493.65
Unsecured, which have significant increase i credit nsk 1.140.95 L647.04
1317 67 Lid06v
Less: expected credit loss allowance (},140.95) (1.647.0d4)
236.72 491.65
—
Agelng schiedule as nt 31 Marcl 2023
Particulars 1-2 -3
Sno Less than 6 monthe | & mantke -1 vear xears xears More than 3 vears Total
Undispuied  Trade receivables - tered
i} pood 2233 146 1247 3421 22335 276.72
Undisputed Trade Recervables - swhich have
tii) sicnificant increase in credit nsk I 747 20.91 52.33 374.58 364 08
(i) [Undisputed Trade Receivables — eredit impured . - - - . .
Disputed Trade Receivables - contidered
fis) pood - - - - - .
Disputed  Trade Recevables - which have
[£5] significan increase in eredst nsk - - - . . .
(v} | Dsputed  Trade Receivables - credit impaired 5.48 10.50 3449 4369 53631 676.87
0 Ageing sehedule as at 30 March 2022
Particulars 12 23
S nn Less than & months |6 _manths -1 vear veary sears Marg tha 3 vears Total
Undispuled Troder Bles = Yored
(1] good 1545 1212 54.11 108 70 303.07 44368
Undispuled Trade Reecivables - which have
fif} simificant ineteass in eredit tisk 48 653 2420 58.67 163.57 200,43
{ii} |Undisputed Trade Receavables - credis impatned - - - - - -
Disputed  Teade Receivables - comsidered
{iv) pood - - - - - .
Disputed  Trade Reccivables =« which have
(] ifi in credit nisk - - . . . .
(vi) ] Disputed Trade Receivables - eredit impamed 277 3391 15132 3ol 247.60 138061
Nale -7
Oiber financial assets -Non eurnent Asal Asat

Balance with banks
- int fixed deposits with ofiginal matunity of more than twelve motths
Inlcsest aectued on lixed deposits

Other receivables
Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, which have significant inerease in trede nsk

Les: Impairment loss ollowance

(n) Pledged against overdraft Moty taken from HOFC Bank Limted

Note-§
Deferved inx nssets

Deforrod dax fyscts:

Arising out ol temporstey dilTerences due ta:
Duallowances ws 438 of the Income Tax Act, 1961
Drsatlowances ws. 4@AL7) of the Income Tax Act. 1961
Share based payment reserve

Undermiting depasits measured at amortized cost

EfTect of reversal of financng component from revenug
Provision for loss due 1o expected credit loss
Property. plani and equipmeni and other inangible assels

Deferred tax assets {Tolal)

Chartered

Accountonts

31 Mareh 2023

31 March 2022

300.00 300.00

22 210

350y 2N 13

2.200.91 1,723.34

2.3583.00 £.9%.51
(2.200.91) 11.723 38y

GIENS 573.23
===

Asnt Asat

31 March 2023

3| March 2022

398 5ol
14578 206
248 729
§215 12106

- 545
1310%0 1.175.61
171 1641
143020 1.353.2%
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{Alf amonnes in Ry Lakhs unfess siated esherwise)

Note-8
Delerred fax assets (Nei) |Continued]

Movemeni In deferved rax balances for tlie vear ended 31 Mareh 2023

Charged! {eredited}
Asat c:'::f::f::{"ﬂf:;‘" to other Asat
1 April 2022 . coniprehiensive 31 March 2023
profit and Joss incame
Deferved (ax nysets / {liabllitlesy:
Disnllownnces w's. 43B ol the [ncome Tox Act, 1961 501 23 - 278
Disallownnces we. 40A(7) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 2206 648 (0.30) 14.78
Share options putstanding reserve 729 48] - 248
Underwriting deposi dat ized cost 12106 3891 - B215
Effect of reversal of financing component from revenue 545 545 .
Provision for impairment toss dus to d credit loss alf; 11750 {135.29) - 1,31090
Property, plant and equipmend and oiher intangble assets 1681 0.30) - 1711
Delerred tax assets (net) 1.353.29 {3271 (lé‘stl) 143020
Nede-8
Dreferred tax nssets {contlnued):
Mavement in deferred tax bainnces for the vene ended 31 March 2032
Charged? {ereaited}
Asal “'-'T;‘l:x‘:ﬁ'zl:m to other Asat
1 April 2021 comprehensive 31 March 2022
profit or loss Ineome

Deferred 1ax assets f {dnbilitics):
Disallowances w's $3B of the Income Tax Act. 196] 53 a0 - ot
Distallonanzes ws $0A(T) of the Income Tax Act. 1961 239 3 4.81 bk
Share opnens cutstanding reserve 285 {444} - 129
Security deposits measured at amortized cost o7l 0Tt - -
Underwtiling deposits measured ab amortined col 15109 ool - 121 06
Eiffest of reversal of financing compenent lrom feverue M3 28.0% - 545
Provision for impai loss dus 1o ey d credit Toss all 1.3702) 203.60 - 117561
Right of use nssets 029 029 . -
Property, plant and equipment and other mtangible asscts w03 222 - 16 81
Deferred tas assetx (et} 1,615,010 266,53 431 1.353.19
Tax tosses foy which no deferred 1ax pssets has been recopnized:
Cxpiry financin] year {as per Income Tax Act. 191) Asat Asat

Umased tax losses

L Apnl 2026 - 31 March 2027

| Apnt 2027 « 31 March 2028

| Apnt 2028 . 31 March 2029

| Apnl 2029« 31 March 2030

Unabsorbed d iation lor indefinile pericd

Note=9
COther non-gurrent assets

Capital advances, considered good

Newe-10
Inveatories

Stock-indrade

31 March 2023

31 March 2012

- 72912
3,354.49 136219
1,396.83 139683
4,946 £0 o, S40E0

190 52 190.52
0888 65 10.626.06
-
Asat Asnt

31 March 2023

31 Marel 2022

382534

382514

Asar
31 March 2022

Asat
31 March 2021

12023

12023

120.23

120,23
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Nofes to the finnuglnl statements for thie yenr ended 36 Marel 2023

(Al antounts i fts Lakhs wHess stoled othicrwise}

Note-1I
Trade receivables-Current

Asat
31 March 2023

Asal
31 March 2022

Unseeured, considered good 73329 140261
U d, which have siguli in cedil nsk 1.239.79 11522
1.963.08 2127383
Less: Provision for imp dut 10 Exy 3 credit loss 11.229.99) 1325.33)
73329 1.402.61
—=—*
(i} Agelng schedule as nt 31 March 2023
Panicutars 1.2 23
S o Lese than O months |6 months -1 year vears Lears Alore than 3vears Talal
Undsputed  Trads reccivables = comvidered
4] pood 593 11.81 33.03 Y067 591 85 73320
Undisputed  Trade Receivables - which kave
(i) stgnifigont i in credit risk 9.96 1940 5540 15205 992 58 1.220.79
fiii} [Undispuied Trade Receivables - credit impained . - . . . .
Disputed  Trade Receivables - considered
(i good - - - - - -
Disputed  Trade Receivables - which have
(v} sipnificant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
(vi} | Dispuled Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - - .
(4iy Agelng schedule as at 31 March 2022
Paruculnrs 1.2 23
Sno Less than 6 months |6 months 1 vear vears sears Maora than 3 wean Total
Undisputed Trade receivables - considered
(i} good 44 4% 3345 15373 308.85 361.10 1.402 61
Undispuled Trade Receivables = which have
{id) sigmificant increase in credit risk 2299 1781 9.9 159.69 $45.24 72522
{uw) |Undispiied Trade Recetvables - eredit impared - - - - - -
Disputed  Trade Receivables - considered
ll_ir) pn_nrl - - . . - -
Dispuled  Trnde Recenables - which have
) sinifleant inerease in eredit nsk - - - - . -
gvid | Disputed  Trade Receivobles ~ exedit impaired - - - - - .
Nole~ 12
Cash and cash equivalents Asat Asat

Cash in hand
Balanee with banks
- Ih CuiTeTil Aseounts

Note- I3
Loans - Current
(a1 amortized cost)

a) Deposits for Underwriting/lisivibution of renl estale projects
Sceurity deposits
= For Underwriling/Distribunoa of real esiate projects

b} Inter-carporale deposits®
«to fellow subsidiary companies

€} Otlier deposits (Unsecured)

*Unsecured, shott term inter cerporale deposits beanng anterest at the rate of & 25% to 9% par mmnum (repxyable on dennnd} piven 1o fellow subsidiary

The loan hias been wilized for the purpase 1 was gronted

Wote= 14
Other Finaneial Assets

Other recelvables

Unsecured, considered gond
Unsecured, which have significant increase in eredu nsk

Less: Impaiment loss allownnee

31 March 2013

31 March 1022

- 24
1200 20779
12.00 210,20
Asat Asat

31 March 2023

3t March 2022

- 11286
17.870.25 12.219,50
. 030
17.870.25 1233266
—
forms b
Asat Asat

31 Narch 2023

31 dMarch 2022

37434 LN2s

062797 57530
L,002.4) 1,648 23
{627.97) (375 40

37444 1,112.534
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Note«15
Current tax assets {uet)

- Advanee meame tavtax deducted al source (net)

[Net of provisien for tasalicn 31 March 2023 Rs. £91.25 lakhs (Previous vear Rs. 491,25 lakhs)}

Note=16
Oiber current assely

Prepnid expenses

Balance with govemment auhonues
Advimes 1o employees

Advimee 10 suppliers

Note-17
Equity Shiare eapltnl

i. Authorized

Equty shares of {zce volue of R 10 each

il. Issued and subscribed and pald up

35.55.00,000 Equity shares of [ace value of
Rs. 10 each fully paid up

il

B

Equlty shares, fully paid-up

Balance at the begimming of the year
Add: Issted during the year
DBalance ot the end af the year

iv,  Sharcs held by Sharcholfers each holing more (han 5% shares:

Asnt Asat
31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
13883 11048
188.83 {5 ]
Asat Asal

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Reconclintion of the number of shares and anount outstanding at the beglnning and at the end of 1he year:

- 018
1d.00 15749
3243 299
0.6 356
176.5% 194.62
=
As it 31 Mareh 2023 Asat 31 March 2022
Neo. of shares Amounl INo. of shinres Auiount
35,55.00,000 35,550.00 35.55.00.000 00 3555000
35.550.0D JE5£0.00
35,55,00.000 13,550 00 33,55.00.000 00 35,550.00
35.550,00 35.550.00
As at 31 March 2023 As ar 3] Mareh 2022
No. ol shares Aot Ne. ol shares Amount
35,53,00000 35,550.00 33,55,00,000 00 35.550.00
35.55.00.000 J5.550.00 35.55.00,000.00 3585000
—rr— CESS ==

As at 5t March 2023

As at 31 Mareh 2022

Name of (he Sharehofder * No. of Shares held %4 of Holding No.ofSharesheld % of Halding
Enquity shares of T 10 each fully paid up
Dhani Leans and Services Limited {"DLSL™) 35,55.00,000 10034 35.33.00,000 00 100%
35.55.00,000 160% 35,55,00,000.00 100%
v.  Shapesheld by pramoiers nt 1he end af (he year

31 March 2023

Promoter nanmie I No, of Shares I %% ol total shares | %a Chanze during he year |
Dhani Loans snd Services Limited ("DLSL") [ 3sssonoanonl 100 | Nil |
31 March 2022

Pronofer name ]|  No.ofShnret | %ol fotalshares | %% Chaitge during 1he year {
Dhani Loans snd Services Limited {"DLSL" I 3sss0000000] 100 00%] il ]

. Rights, preferences and restrictions nitiched to the equity shares:

a The Company has only one ¢lass of equity shares having o face value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of fully paid up cquity share is entiled (o one vole per share  The final
dividend proposed by the Board of Birectors., if any. is subject 16 the approval of the sharchalders in the ensuing Annual General Mectng,

b, Inthe event of liquidanon of the Company. the holders of equity shares will bs entilled 10 receive remaining assels af the Company, afler d

disttibution wilk be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

vil.  The Campany has nat issued any bonus shares dunng the cusrent vear and five years immediately preceding current vear.

ial The

of all prefe

vhil.  There ane no shares issued pursuant fo conmel without paymenm betesg received i cash, rllorned as fudly pad up by way of bams wsue The Compam has ot bought back shazes during

the last fise years

Ix.  DLSL beeame the Holding Company of the Company with efect from March 20, 2020.

%, Emplovee Stock Oplian Schemes: |Refer Notwe - 36)
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(Al amounts tn I Lakhs vnless stared atherwise)

Note - 18
Other equity Asar Asat

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Share based pryments resene 945 2881
Retaned camnings (12.032.88) {12.551.3%)
Qher companent of eguity ER L 49]

{(12.018.52) (12.517.66)

{n) Stutre based paymeats reserve
‘The share based paymenl reserve is used 1o recerd the value of equity-setited share based paymient transactions willi employees The ampunts reeonded in share based pmyment reserve are

transferred o share pressi ined ings upon ise of siock options by employees.

{5} Retnined enrningy

are the fated profils eamied by the Contpany tll date, less transfes to general reserves, duidend tincluding dividend distributzon 13x) and otliet distbunions made 0
the sharchelders
(e} Gther component of equity
Other comy of tqudty tep ferred from share based payments reserve upen exercise of siock options by emplovees during the vear
Note- 19
Borrenings-Non cutrent Asat Asnt

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Veeliicle loans from bonks (secured) ™ ** . - L3
Less: Cament maturily of long-1emm borcowings - (1.64)
(8) The above vehicle loans are secured apainst Ivpoth of resg vedhucles purchased . [nterest s pavable on such loans 1 8.75 % pa

(b) The above vehicle loans are repayable in equated monthly instalments aver & penod of five years,
() There 1s no conténuing defzull as on the Balanee Sheet dare in repayment of the loans or interest amoums.

Note =20
Provisions - Non Current Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for eniployee benellts {Refer Note - 37)
Provision for gratuity 5709 BS 46
Provision for compensaled absences 1076 1940
67,95 10486
=
Note - 21
Borrowinzs - Corrent Asnt Asnt
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured loans
Inter corpomie deposits
From Ultimate Holding Compamy 1500 -
15.00 -

Unsecured loan from the Ullimate Holding Company 15 repayable a1 any wee at the oplion of the Compasy and ¢ames inierest pavable £f the rafe of ¥.25% per onnum calculated on duty
outstanding balances. There is no default in the repaviment of the loan of inferest at the balanee sheet date

Reconefllntdon of Mabillties ardsing frem financing actlvities

The changes in the Company’s liabilities nrising [rom financing nctivities can be classified os follows:-

Shert 1?m1 Toinl
barrowings
As at 1 April 2021 . .
Cash flows
Repayment - -
Proceeds - -
As at 31 March 2022 - -
Asat 1 Aprll 2022
Ceh flows
Repavment (8.025 0m) {R.025 00)
Proceads R,040 00 8.040.00
As at 31 Mareh 2023 15 (K} 15.00

Chartered O
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Indinhwlls Livestatent AdyTsors Limited
Moles to the Nnnackal statestenls for e year ended J1 Magch 2023
AN amonnts in Rs Lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Note-22
Other Muancinl Mabilities-eurrent

Current maturity of long-term bomowings

Reconcliintion of tiahlitles nrising from finnncing activities

The changes in the Company"s liabilities asising from finantng sclivilies ¢an be elassified as folfows.

Asal
31 Marnch 2023

Asat
31 March 2022

1.od

1.04

Particulars

Amount Rs.

Asaf 1.Aprl 2021

553

Cnsh flows:
= Repayment
= Proceeds

(4.49)

As nt 31 March 2022

As nt 1 April 2022

Cash flows:
- Repayment
= Proceeds
As at 31 March 2023

Note«23
Other current Nabilitles

Sulutory dues payables
Emplayes related paynbles
Expenses and other payables

Note-24
Provisiens-curren!

Pravision for employee benefits {(Refer Note « 37)
Pronision Far gratuily
Provision for compensaied absences

Asal
31 March 2013

Asat
31 March 2022

187 5.8
085 121.24
83.03 18848

111.75 334.87

Asat
31 Mareh 2023

Asat
3 March 2022

159 2
0. 053
1.83 173
St =
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Notes to the financial stxtements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(A1l amotmits in Rs Lakhs unless stated othenvise)

Note -23
Revenue from operations

Sale of services
Commission, brokerage and service income

Reconcilintion of revenue from contracts with customers
with revenue from as above:

Commission, brokerage and service income

Revenue from contracts as per contract price:

Adjustmenis made (o contract price on account of:

a) Financing component included in revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers as per Statement of
Profit and Loss

Note - 26
Other income

Interest income from inter-corporate deposits
Interest on fixed deposits

Excess provisions written back
Miscellaneous Income

Unwinding of interest income

Interest income from Income Tax Refund
Net gain on derecognition of leases

Note -27
Employee benefits expense

Salaries

Contribution to provident fund and other ftinds

StafT welfare expenses

Gratuity and Compensated Absences [Reler Note: 37)

Emplayce share-based payment/ Stock appreciation rights (credit)expense

Note - 28
Finance costs

Interest on bank overdraft

Iuterest on Inter Corporale Deposits
Interest on vehicle loans

Interest on Lease Liabilities

/ Chartered 1O

2
i,

For the year ended
31 March 2023

290.01

For the yenr ended
31 March 2022

290.01

81t.61

811.61

31 March 2023

290.01

290.01

For the year ended
31 March 2023

31 March 2022

811.61

811.61

For the year ended
31 March 2022

1.463.16
12.78
55.46

1.73
175.70
4.13

1.713.01

441.39
11.52
22.57

224.22
14.08

1.17

For the year ended
31 March 2023

714.95

291.38
0.52
0.02
9.39

(18.97)

For the year cnded
31 March 2022

282.34

For the year ended
31 March 2023

479.84
0.54
1.03

13.87
17.86

513.14

0.92
0.003
0.01

For the year ended
31 Maurch 2022

0.93




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2023

(Al amounnts in Rs Lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Note -29
Impairment losses

Provision for impairment loss due to expected credit loss [Refer

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Note 34 (IAXD)] 1,200.00 4,728.24
Bud debts written offf credit notes issued 662.43 5,537.20
Less: Adjusted against provisions (662.43) - {5.537.20} -
1,200.00 4,728.24
Note - 30
Otlier expenses For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Stamp duly 0.09 0.04
Software expenses 0.18 0.69
Lease rent - 99.79
Service Charges 30.76 -
Rales and taxes 2,10 8.73
Electricity - 4.03
Insurance - 0.07
Legal and professional 20.90 40.66
Travelling and conveyance 1.02 4.54
Printing and stationery 0.26 -
Repairs and maintenance - others 0.10 11.52
Business promotion 0.85 1.15
Auditor's remuneration-As auditor 3.00 1.75
Loss on sale/ scrapping of fixed assets 7.99 1.54
Net loss on modification of financial assels - 4.26
Bank Charges 0.24 0.36
Miscellaneous expenses - 0.12
§7.49 179.25
Note - 31
Tax expenses For the year ended For the year ended
31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
Current tax - -
Tax adjvstment related to earlier years - 0.21
Deferred tax (credit)/expense {77.71) 266.53
Income tax {credit)expense reported in the statement of profit and loss (77.71) 266.74

The major compenents of tax expense and ils reconciliation to expected tax expense based on the enacted tax rate applicable to the Company is 25.168%
(Previous year: 25.168%) and the reported tax expense in statement of profit or loss are as lollows:

Accounting profit/ (loss) before tax expense

Income tax rate:
Expected fax expense

438.05
25.168%
[10.25

Tax effect of adjusiments to reconcile expected income tax expense with reported

income tax expense

Tax effect on ilems exempt under income tax
Tax effeet of expenses which will never be allowed
Tax losses for which no deferred tax was recognized

Otlicrs

Deferred tax efTect on temperary differences

Tax elfect of carlier year items

90.93
(1.7
(185.59)
(10.82)
(77.71)

Income tax (eredit)fexpenses recopgnized in the statement of profit & loss {77.71)

(3,899.71)
25.168%
{981.48)

(264.56)
5.59
1.24548

(5.03)
266.53
0.21
266.74




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Notes to the financizl statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amonnts in Rs Lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Note -32

Earnings per share;

Basic carnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable 1o equity shareholders for the period by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the reporting year. Diluted eamings per share are computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and also the
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issned on the conversion of all dilutive potentinl equity shares. The dilutive potential cquity
shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable, had the shares been actually issued at fair value.

Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converied as of the beginning of the year, unless they have been issued at a later date. The number of equity
shares and potential diluted equity shares are adjusted for stoek split, bonus shares and the potential dilutive effect of employee stock option plan as
appropriate.

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Net Profit(Loss) for the year from conlinuing operations 513.75 (4.166.43)
Weighted average number of equity shares for computation of Basic EPS 35,55.00,000 35.55,00,000
Basic earning per share (Rs.) 0.15 {117
Weighted average number of Equity Sharcs for contputation of Diluted EPS 35,55.00,000 35,55,00,000

Diluted earning per share (Rs.) 0.15 (1.17)




Indinbulls Tavestment Advisors Limited
iNotes to the financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2023
(Al amaonmis in Rs Lakhs unless sinted otherwise)

Note - 33
Financial instruments

A Financinl asscis and linbilities
The carrying amaunts of financial insiruments by category are ns follows:

Asat Asat
31 Mareh 2023 31 darch 2022

Particulars

Financial nascls measured at amoriized cost

Loans 19,693.38 14,006.20
Trade receivables 1,010.01 1,896.26
Cash and cash cquivalenis 12.00 210.20
Oaher financial assets 1,050.39 1,686.07
Total 21,765.78 17,798.73

Financial linbilitics measured ot amortized cost

Beorowings (other than debt securities bug including interest acemed) 15.00 1.04
Taral 15.00 1.0

B Fair values hierarchy
As per Ind AS 107, *Financial Instr : Disclosures®, the fair values of the financial assets or finnncial liabilities are defined as thie price that would be received on
sale of nssct or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date Financial asscts and fi ial lizbilities are
measured at fair value in the finaacial statements and are grouped into duree Levels of a fair value hierarchy. The fair value hicrarchy is based an inputs ta valuation
techniques that are used 40 measure fair value that are cither ohservable or unobscrvable. Tiie hicrrchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities nml lowest priorty to unobservable inputs. The three Levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the
measurement, as follows:

The categorics used are as follows:

Level 13 Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical instnmments in an nctive market;

Levet 2: Directlv (i.c. ns nrices) or indireealy (i.e. derived from prices) observable market inputs, otlher than Level 1 inputs; and
Level 3: Inputs which zre not based on ebservable market data (unobservable inputs).

B.1 Fair value of instruments measured at amortized cost
Fair value of instruments measured at amortized cost for which fair value is disclosed is as follows, these fair values are calculated using Level 3 inputs:

. As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Particulars - -
Carrylng value Fair value Crreying value Fair value

Financial assefs
Loans 19,693.38 19,693.38 14.,006.20 14,006.20
Trade reecivables 1.010.01 LOI00} 1.896.26 .896.26
Cash and cash cquivalents 12.00 1200 210.20 210.20
Obier financial assets 1.050.39 1.050.39 1.636.07 1.686.07
Total 21,765.78 21,765.78 17.798,73 17.798.73
Financial llabitities
Borrowinps fother ihan dely securities) 15.00 15.00 1.01 1.04
Total 15.00 15,00 1.04 104

Fair value of cash nnd ensh equivalents, trade receivables, loans and other fnancial assets approximate their carrying 2mouats fargely due to current waturitics of
these instrunents. Accordingly, fair value hierarchy for these finnncinl instruments hiave not been presented above. Fair value measurement of lease linbilities is not
required. Yaluation techniques used to detesmine fair values are piven below:

(i} The fxir values of the Company's fixed interest bearing loans and receivables are determined by applying diseounted cash Nowes {*DCFT) method, using discount
ate that relleets the issuer's borvowing rate as al the end of the reponting period. The own non-performance risk as at 31 March 2023 was nssessed to be insipnificant,

{ii) The fair values of the Company fixed rale interest-bearing debi securities and borrowings are determined by applying discounted cash fows (*DCF’) method,
using discount rate that reflects the issuer’s borrowing rale as at the cnd of the seporting period. The Company did not have any sarialile mie interest-benrng el
securitics / bormowings.

Note - 34
Finaneial risk management

=

Risk Management .

The Company”s activities expose it 1o matker risk, liquidity risk and eredit risk. The Company*s primary focus is to loresee the unpredictability of fimancial markets
and seck fo minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversiglit of the Company risk mement i cork. The Company’s risk are ped by a treasary department under policies approved by the board of directors.
The boand of directors provides written principles for overnll risk management. This note explains 1he sources of risk whiclt the ennity s exposed 1o and how the
entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial statements.

Chartered

Accountants




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited .
Notes to the finanelal statemients for the period ended 31 March 2023
(Al amomis m Rs Lakhs unless siaied othenvise)

Note - 34 {conlinued):

Risk Exposure arising from

Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, loans, trade and other reccivables and other
linancinl assets

Liquidity risk Borvowings and other financial liabilitics

Market risk - Romowings

interest rate

q = e,

specific guidelines to focus on maintaining a diversified ponifolio.

Tn order 10 avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company”s policies and pre
Idemtified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly.

A) Credit risk
Credit sisk is the risk that a counterpanty fails 1o discharge its cbligation to the Compnny. The Company'’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by cash and
cash cquivnlents, investments, loan assets, trade receivnbles and other finanginl asse1s. The Company continucusly monitors defoults of customers and other
counterparties and incorporales this infonnation into its credit risk controls.

Financlal assels that expose the entity o credit risk**: The canying amount of financial asscts represents maximum amount of credit exposure. The maximum
exposure 10 credit risk is as per the table below, it being total of camying amount of cash and cash equivalents, trede receivables and other financial assets measured at
amortised cost.

. Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(i) Low credit risk

Loans 19.693.38 14,005.20
Cash aed each equivalents 12.00 210.20
Trade receivables 1.010.01 [,895.26
Other financial assels 105039 1.686.07

(i) High credit risk

Trade receivables 237074 2372.26
Oler financial assets 2.837.88 220878

* These represent gross cammying values of financial assets, without deduction for expected credit losses

Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on Financial Assets

The Company continuously monitors all finnncinl asscts subject to ECLs. Tn order to detenine whether an instrument is subject to 12 month ECL (12mECL) or life
time ECL (LTECL), the Company nssesses whether there has been 8 sipnificant incrense in credit risk or the assct has become credit impaired since initial
recognition. The Company applics following quantitative and qualitative criterin to assess whether there is significant crease in eredit risk or the asset has been
credit impatred:

- Histori¢al trend of collection from counterparty

- Campany's contractual rights willt respect to recovery of dues from counterparty

- Credit rating of counterparty and any relevant information nvailable in public domain

Trade and ather receivables:

Exposures to customers’ outstanding at ihe end of cach reponting period are revicwed by the Company to determine incurred and expected credit losses. Historical
trends of collection from counterparties on limely basis reflects Jow level of credit risk. As the Company has n contractual right 1o such receivables as well s the
control over such funds due from customers, the Conpany does not estimalte any credit tisk in refation 10 such receivables. Furilier, manngement believes that the
unimpnirec amounts that are past due by more than 180 days are still collectible in full, based on historical payment behaviour.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The credit worthiness of such banks and financial institutions with whom cash and cash equivalents are held is evaluated by the sanagement on an ongoing basis and

is considered to be high.

Loans '

Loans nteasured at amoniized cost primarily comprise security deposils given for undenvriting projects. Credit risk refated to these other finaneial assets is managed
by tnonitoring Uie recoverability of such amounts continnonsly.

Other inancial assets ‘

Other {inancial asszts measured at amortized cost includes inlerest receivable . Credit risk related to these other fi inl nssets is ped by monitoring the
recovermbility of such amounts contimiously.

a} Credit risk manngement
For banks and financial instiluticns, only high rates banks/financial institutions are accepted. The Company asscsses and manages credil risk based on intemal eredit
rating system. Intemal credit mting s perfonned for each class of financial instruments with different ehnencteristics. The Company assigns the following credit
ratings to cach class of finaneind nssets based on the assumptians, inputs and facters specific to the class of financial assets.
()  Low credit risk
(1) Moderate credit risk
(it} 1ligh credit risk

The Company provides for expected credit loss based on the follewing:
Nature Assets covered Dasis of expected credit loss
Low credit risk Cash and cash equivnlents and loans 12 manth expected credit loss

High credit risk Loans, Trade and other receivables and other financial assets  |Life time expected credit loss or fully provided for




Indiabulls Invesiment Advisors Limited
Naotes to the finanelnl statemenis for the period ended 31 Mareh 2023
¢ amounts tn Rs Laklis unless stated otherwise)

Note - 34 (continucd):

Based on business environment in which the Campany operates, a default on a financial assel is considered when the counter party fails to make payments within the
sgreed time period as per conract. Loss rates reflecting defaults arc based on actual credit loss expericnce and considering differences between current and historical
econornic conditions.

Assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company continues to engage with panties whose balances are written ofT and
attempts Lo enforce repayment. Recoveries made are recognized in statement of profit and loss.

by Credit risk exposure
1) Expected credit losses for financlal assets

As nt 31 March 2023 Estimated gross | Expected credit .ﬁ:l?::ﬁfﬁ’ﬁ:iﬂ'.
earrying amount losses provision
Cash nnd cash equivalents 12.00 - 12.00
Loans 19,693.38 - 19,693,358
Trade receivables 3.380.75 2,370.74 1,010.01
Onher financial assels 3.888.27 2.837.88 1050.39
As 0t 31 March 2022 Estimnted gross Expected credit rﬁf‘;?l:::ﬁ:i‘:n::::
carrying umount Tosses provision
Cash and cash equivalents 21020 - 210.20
Leoans 14.006,20 - 14,006,20
Trade receivables 4,268.52 2.372.26 1.896.26
Other financial asscts 3.931.85 2110878 1.685.07
Reconciliation of Provision for Impalrment losses under expeeted ¢redlt loss*:
Reconcilintion of Provision for Impalrment losses Tende receivables Other financinl
under expected eredit loss: nIsets
Loss allowance on 1 April 2021 2,126.93 3.353.07
Impainment loss recopnized during the vear 4.728.24 -
 Adiusied npainst Bad debts wrilien off / credit notes issned (4,482.91) (1,054.29)
L.oss ultowance on 31 March 2022 2,372,26 2,208.78
Loss nllownnce on 1 April 2022 2,372,26 2,298.78
Impairment loss recoguized duging the vear 660.90 539.10
Adijusted apainst Bad debts writicn ofT / credit noles issued (662.43) -
Loss allowance on 31 March 2023 2,370.74 2,837.88

As nforesaid, the Company has recorded provisions for impairment due to expeeted credit losses on certain financial nssets ns at March 31, 2023 on an estimated
Dasis, in respect of losses Lhat may arise dependent upon future developments including inter alia. dlie uncertninties due 10 the effects of unmvelling of the Covid-19
pandemic on the Company’s business. There has been no materinl ¢hange in the controls or processes followed in the closing of these financial statements of the
Company.

The expected credit [oss allowance above is calenlnted based on assamptions about the risk of defoult and expecied loss mies. The Company uses judgement in

making these nssamptions and selecting inputs to the loss allowance ealeulation, based on pest history, existing conditions, 2s well as forward tooking estimates at the
end of ench reporting period.

¢} Cancentration of trade reccivables

The Company canies ot the business of underwriting/distribution of real estate projects on behall of developers and related consultancy services, The Company’s
ousianding receivabtes are for commission receivable from vrderwriting/distribution of real estate projecis on behalf of developers and refated services. Loans and
other financinl assets najorly represents loans to relnied parties and deposits given for business purposes.

B) Liguidity risk
Liqquidity risk is tlee risk tleat the Company will encounter difficulty in ineeting the olligations associated with its financinl linbilities that are seitled by delivering cash
or another financial nsset. The Company's approach to managiny liquidity is to ensure as Far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to mcct its liabilities
when they are duc.

The Company mainfains Nexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed eredit hines. Managemenl menitors the Company’s liguidity positions {also

comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities) and cnsh and cash cquivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company nlso takes into account liquidity of the
market in which the entity operates. :

Chartered O
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Notes to the finnncinl statements for the period ended 31 March 2023

{AIl amowns i Re Lakhs unless stared othenvise)

Note - 34 {continued):
{i) Financing arrangements

The Company had access 1o the following funding facilitics:

As at 31 March 2023 Tatal facility Drawn Undrawn

- Expiring within on¢ yenr 270.00 - 270.00

- Expiring beyvond one year 75,000.00 15.00 74,985.00

Tutal 15,270.00 15.00 75.255.00

As at 31 March 2022 Total facility Drawn Undrawn

- Expiring within one year 270.00 - 270.00

- Expiring bevond one year 50,000.00 - 50,000.00

Total 50,270.00 - 50,270.00
(i} Maturities of financial assets and liabilitics

Thte tables below analyze the Compary fi inl assets and linbilities inte velevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturitics.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contretual undiscoented cash flows;

As at 31 March 2023 Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 years Total

Non-derivatives .

Cnsh and cash equivalent and other bank balances 12.00 - - - 12.00

Trade receivables 1.963.08 1,207.60 21007 - 3,380.75

Lonns 17.881.66 1.651.17 486.97 - 20,019.80

Other financinl assets 1.304.67 2.460.13 123.47 - 3.388.27

Total undiscounted financizl assets 21.161.41 5.318.90 820.51 . 27,300,582

Non-terivalives

Borrowings other than debt securities 15.00 - - - 15.00

Total uniliscounted financial Habilities 15.00 - - - 15.00

Net undiseounted financial assets/{linbilities) 2114641 5.318.90 $20.51 - 27,285.82

As at 31 March 2022 Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Maore than 3 venrs Total

Non-derivatives

Cnsh and cash equivalent and other bank balances 21020 - - . 210.20

Trade reccivables 2,127.83 2.025.40 136.73 - 4,290.16

Loats 12,349.07 - 1.651.17 486.97 14,487.21

Other financial assets 1,990.33 1.994.52 - - 3.934.85

Total undiscounted financinl assets 16.677.43 4,020.12 1,787.90 486,97 22,972,942

Nonederivatives

Borrowinps other than debt sccurities - 1.04 - - 1.04

Total undlscounted financial linbilitics - L04 - - 1.04

Net undiscounted Mnancial assetsi{linbilities) 1667743 4,019.08 1,787.90 486,97 21,971.38

C) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future camings, foir values or future cash flows related 1o financial instrument that may result from adverse changes in market rates

and prices (such as foreign exchange rates, inferest rtes, other prices). The Company is exposci to inarket risk primarily related to interest rate risk and price risk.

n} Foreign carrency risk

The Company does not lave into any foreign currency denominated nsscts or liniblities as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, Accordingly, the Company is not

expesed lo foreipn cumency risk.

b} Interest rate risk
I Liabibigies

[nterest mte tisk is the risk where the Conspany is cxposed 1o the risk that fair vahee or future cash fows of its finane:al instruments will fluctuate as a result of change
in market interest rates. The Company’s policy is to mimimize inlerest rate cash Mow risk exposures on long-leam financing. At 33 March 2023 and as nt 31 March

2022, the Company is expescd to changes in market interest rates through borrowings.

Interess rate risk cxposure

Below is the overl] exposure of the Company to interest mte risk:

Particulars

Asat
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Varinble rate borrowings
Fixed rate bomrowinps

15.00

104

‘Total

15.00

104
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i)

)
i)

Note - 34 (continued):

Sensitivery
Below is the sensitivity of profit ar loss in interest rates.

Asat Asat’
Pacticulars 31 March2023 | 31 March 2022
Interest sensitivity*
Injerest rotes = in¢rease by 50 basis points (50 bps) 0.00% -
Tnlerest mies - decrease by 50 basis points (50 bps) (0.00) -

* Holding all other variables constant
aAmrount is Tess tdan five Hundred

Assets
The Company's fixed deposits are carried at amortized cost and are fixed mte deposits. They are therefore nat subject to interest mte risk as defined in Ind AS 107,
since neithier the enrrying amount nor the future cash flows will flucnuate beeause of a change in niarkel inlerest mies.

Price risk

Exposure

The Company’s cxposure price risk ariscs from inv s held and ¢l 110 the balance sheet cither ns fair value through otlier compreliensive bicome or nt
fair value through profit or loss. To manage the price risk arising from investments, e Company diversifies its parifolio of assets. The Company does not have any
financial assets as ot 31 March 2623 and 31 March 2022 that expose it to price risk.

‘0

Note-35

Capital management

The Company’s ¢aprital mznagement gbjectives are

- to enswre the Company™s ability to conlinue as a going concern

- to maintain an oplimz] eapital stractare lo reduce cost of eapital

- to provide an adequate return to sharelaliers

The Company menitors capital on the basis ol the camying amount of equity less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face of balance sheet.

Management assesses the Company's capital requirements in order 1o maintain an efficient overall financing strscture while avoiding excessive leverage. Tlus inkes
into accowtt the subordination levels of the Company’s various elasses of dett The Company manages the eapital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light
of ¢hanges in ceonomic conditions and the risk charactenstics of thie underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the ¢apital struciure, the Company may adjust
the amount of dividends paid to sharcholders, retum capital to sharchelders, 1ssue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

" Asat Asat
Particolars 31 March 2023 | 31 March 202
Met delbt* 300 -
‘Total equity 23,531 48 23032 34
Net debi to equity ratio 0,0001 -

* Net debt includes debt securities + borrowings other than debt securities + interest accrued « cash and cash equivalents.

(iTis space has intennionally been left Manky
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Note - 36
Employee stock eption schemes;

The Ultimate Holding Company has issucd various Employees stock options scheme (ESOP / ESOS) for the benefit of its employees and its subsidiary
Companies.

A. Grants during the year:

The Ultimate Hotding Company has established the “Udaan Employee Welfare Trust™ (“Udaan — EWT™) ("Trust™) for the implementation and management
of ils employces benefit scheme viz. the “Dhani Services Limited - Employee Stock Benefit Scheme - 2008 & 2009” (Scheme) for the benefit of its
employees and its subsidinries. Pursuant to Regulation 3(12) of the SEBI (Share Based Employec Benefits) Regulations, 2014, fully paid up cquity shares of |
1,16,00,000 (One crore sixteen lakh) lying in the Trust have been appropriated towards the Scheme for grant of Employees Stock Options (ESOPs) of its ‘
employees and of its subsidiary Companies as permitted by SEBL

The Ultimate Holding Company has granted 18,00,000 and 98,00,000 employees stock options under DSL ESOP-2008 and DSL ESOP-2009 schemes
respectively. Detail of same is as below:

Natme of Schenme DSL ESOP - 2008 DSL ESOP - 2009
No. of options granted [8,00,000 98,00,000
Exercise price (3} 30 30

B. Employces Stock Options Schemes:
{i) Emplayces Stock Option Scheme -
DSL ESOP - 2008

Total options under the scheme (Nos.) 2,00,08,000
Options granted (Nos.) 97,480,000 8,380,600 18,00,000 18,00,000 17,00,000
{Regrant) {Regrant) (Regrant) {(Regrant) {Regrant)
Ten years, Five years, Five years. Five years, Five years,

Vesti .
esting period and percentage 1st Year - 15% 20% each year 20% cach year 20% each year 20% each year

2nd year to 9th year
- 10% cach year

10th year - 5% )

2nd July each year, 25th March each  28th Juneeach  25th February each  01st April ench year,

Vesting date commencing year, commencing year, year, commencing 25 commencing 01
2 July 2017 25 Mareh 2019 commencing 28 February 2023 April 2022
June 2023
5 years from each 5 years from each 5 years from 5 years from each 5 ycars from each

Exercisable period vesting date vesting date cach vesting date vesting date vesting date
Exercise price (¥) 24,15 254,85 30 68 150
Chuistanding at the beginning of 1 April 2021 46,24,800 86,300 - - -
Granted/ regranted during the year (Nos.) - - - 18,00,000 17,00,000
Forfeited during the year (Nos.) 30,000 59.400 - - ) 17,00,000
Exercised during the year (Nos.) - - - - -
Expired during the year (Nos,) - - - - -
Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the year - - - - -
Outstanding as at 31 March 2022 (Nos.) 45,94,800 27,400 18,00,000 -
Vested and exereisable as at 31 March 2022 (Nos.) 45,94.800 - - - -
Remaining contractual life (weighted months) 42 72 - 95 -
Outstanding at the beginning of 1 April 2022 45,294,800 27,400 - 18,00,000 -
Granted/ regranted during the year (Nos.) - - 18,00,000 - -
Forfeited during the year (Nos.) 5,50,400 27,400 - 18,00,000 -
Exercised during the year (Nos.) 22,00,000 - - - -
Expired during the year (Nos.) - - - - -
Surrendered and cligible for re-grant during the year - - - - -
Outstanding as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.) 18,44,400 - 18.00,000 - -
Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2022 (Nos.) 18,444,400 - - - -
Remaining contractual life (weighted months) 30 - 87 - -

Weighted average excreise price ol share during the year ended 31 March 2023: Not applicable (31 March 2022: Not applicable).
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Note - 36
Employce stock option schemes: (continued)

{ii) Employees Stock Option Schenie -

DSL ESOP - DSLESOP- DSLESOP-2009 DSL ESOP -2009
Total options under the Scheme (Nos. ) 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000
Options granted (Nos.) 20,50,000 95,00,000 98,00,000 1,00,00,000

{Regrant) (Regrant) {Regrant)

Vesling period and percentage Ten years, Five years, Five years, Five years,

10% each year 20% cach year 20% cach year 20% cach year
Vesting date 13th April cach 13th May cach  28th June each year, 2nd September cach

year, commencing year, commencing 28 June  year, commencing
13 April 2011 commencing 2023 2 September 2018

3 years [rom each
Exercisable period vesling date

Exercise price (3) 3135
Outstanding at the beginning of 1 April 2021 50,000
Granted/ regranted during the year (Nos.) -
Forfeited during the year (Nos.) -
Exergised during the year (Nos.) -
Expired. during the year {Nos.) -
Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the -

QOutstanding as at 31 March 2022 {Nos.) 50,000
Vested and excrcisable as at 31 March 2022 50,000
Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months) 36
Outstanding at the beginning of 1 April 2022 50,000
Granted/ regronted during the year (Nos.) -
Forfeited during the year (Nos.) -
Exercised during the year (Nos.) -
Expired during the year (Nos.) -
Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the -
Outstanding as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.) 50,000
Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2023 50,000

Remaining contractual life {Weighted ionths) 24

cach vesling date

13 May 2017

5 years [rom 5 years from each

vesting date
16 ki)
25,25,600 -

24,000 -
25,01.600 -
25.01,600 -

13 -

25,01,600 -
- 98,00,000

711,200 -
17,90,400 98,00,000

17,90,400 -
31 87

5 years from cach
vesting date

219.65
26,85,600

13.88,800
12,96,800

[\ ]

12,96,800

12,96,800
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Note - 36
Employee stock option schemes: (continued)

DSL ESOP - 20803 DSL ESOP - 2009

Total options under the Scheme (Nos.) 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000
Options granted (Nos.) 98.00,000 §4,00,000
: {Regrant) {Regrant)
Vesting period and percentage Five years, Five years,
20% each year 20% each year
Vesting date 25th February each  01st April cach year,
year, commencing 25  commencing 01
February 2023 April 2022
Excreisable period 5 ycurs.from each 5 years from cach
vesting date vesting date
* Exercise price (Z) 68.00 150.00
Qutstanding at the beginning of 1 April 2021 - -
Granted/ regranted during the year (Nos.) 98,00,000 84,00,000
Forfeited during the year (Nos.) - $4,00,000
Excreised during the year (Nos.) - -
Expired during the year (Nos.) “ -
Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the - -
Outstanding as at 31 March 2022 (Nos.) 98,060,000 -
Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2022 - -
Remaining coniraciual life (Weighted Months) 95 -
Qutstanding at the beginning of I April 2022 98,00,000 -
Granted/ regranted during the year (Nos.) - .
Forfeited during the year (Nos.) 98.00,000 -
Exercised during the year {Nos.) - -
Expired during the year (Nos.) - -
Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the - -
Outstanding as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.) - -
Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2023 - -
Remaining contractual life {Weighted Months) - -

Weighted average exercise price of share during the year ended 31 March 2023; Nil (31 March 2022: Nil)
(it} Dhani Services Limited - Employee Stock Benefit Scheme 2019 (*Scheme®) ("DSL-ESBS 2019"),

The Scheme has been adopted and approved pursuant to: (a) a resolution of the Board of Directors of the Ultimate Holding Company at its meeting held on
22 October 2019; and (b) a specinl resolution of the shareholders’ of the Ultimate IHolding Company passed through postal ballot on 4 December 2019,
result of which were declared on 5 December 2019.

This Scheme comprises:

a.  Dhani Services Limiled Employees Stock Option Plan 2019 (“ESOP Plan 2019™)
b.  Dhani Services Limited Employees Stock Purchase Plan 2019 (“ESP Plan 2019™)
¢.  Dhani Services Limited Stock Appreciation Rights Plan 2019 (*SARs Plan 2019™)

In accordance with the Sceurities and Exchange Board of India {Share Based Employee Benefitsy Regulations, 2014 (the “SBEB Regulations™), the Ultimate
Holding Company has set up "Udaan - Employce Weliare Trust” ("Trust”} for the purpose of implementation of the Scheme as per the terms of the
respective Schemes as aforesaid. The Trust, in compliance with the “SBEB Regulations™, is authorised to purchase upto an aggregate of 10,500,000 {One
Crore Five lakh) fully paid-up equity shares. being not more than 2% {Two percent) of the fully paid-up cquity share capital of the Uliimate Holding
Company as on the date of approval of sharehalders, from the secondary market. The Ultimate Holding Company has appropriated 10,400,000 fully paid up
equity shares purchased by the Trust under the Scheme.
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Note - 36
Employce stock option schemes: (continued)

DSL-ESBS 2019

Total options under the Scheme (Nos.) 1,05,00,000
Options granted (Nos.} 1,04,00,000
Vesting period and percentage Three years,
33.33% each year
Vesting date 17th August ecach
year, commencing 17
August 2021

Exercisable period

Exercise price (3)

QOutstanding at the beginning of T April 2021 (Nos.)
Granted during the year (Nos.)

Forleited during the year (Nos.)

Exercised during the year (Nos.)

Expired during the year (Nos.)

Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the
Qutstanding as at 31 March 2022 (Nos.)

Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2022
Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months)

Quistanding 2t the beginning of 1 April 2022 (\lus }
Granted during the year (Nos.)

Forfeited during the year (Nos.)

Exereised during the year (Nos.)

Expired during the year (Nos.)

Surrendered during the year {Nos.)

Outstanding as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.)

Vested and excreisable as at 31 March 2023
Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months)

3 years from each
vesting date
250

1,04,00,000

1,04,00,600
34,606,667
65

1,04,00,000

1.04.00,000

{(iv) Dhatni Services Limited « Employee Stock Benelit Scheme 2020 (“Scheme™) ("DSL-ESBS 2020").

The Scheme has been adopted and approved pursuant to: (a) a resolution of the Board of Directors of the Ultimate Holding Company al its meeling held on
23 January 2020; and (b) a specia! resolution of the sharcholders” of the Ultimate Holding Company passed through postal ballot dn 20 March 2020, result
of which were declared on 21 March 2020.

This Scheme comprises:

a.  Dhani Services Limited Employees Stock Option Plan 2020 (*ESOP Plan 2020™)
b.  Dhani Scrvices Limited Employees Stock Purchase Plan 2020 (“ESP Plan 2020™)
¢.  Dheni Services Limited Stock Appreeiation Rights Plan 2020 (*SARs Plan 2020™)

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Shure Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (the “SBEB Regulations™), the Ultimate
Holding Company has set up "Udaan « Employees Welfare Trust™ {Trust) for 1he purpose of implementation of the Scheme as per the terms of the respective
Schemes as aforesaid. The Trust, in compliance with the *SBEB Repulations™, is autherised to purchase upto an aggregate of 9,300,000 (Ninety Three lakh)
fully paid-up cquity shares, being not more than 2% (Two pereent) of the fully paid-up cquity share capital of the Ultimatc Holding Company as on the date
of approval of sharcholders, from the secondary market. The Ultimate Holding Company has appropriated 93,00,000 fully paid up equity shares purchased
by the Trust under the Scheme.
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Note -36
Employee stock option schemes: (continued)

DSL-ESBS 202¢
Total options under the Scheme (Nos.) 93,00,000
Options granted (Nos.) 93,00,000
Vesting period and percentage Three years,

33.33% each year

Vesting date 7th April each year,
commencing 7 April |
2021
Exercisable peried 3 years from each
vesting date
Exercise price (¥} 250

Outstanding as at 1 April 2021 {Nos.) -
Granted/ regranted during the year (Nos.) 93,00,000
Exercised during the year (Nos.) -
Expired during the year (Nos.) -
Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the -

Qutstanding as at 31 March 2022 {Nos.) 93,00,000
Vested and exercisable as al 31 March 2022 NA
Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months) NA

Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months) -

Outstanding as at 1 April 2022 (Nos.) G 93,00,000
Granted/ regranted during the year (Nos.} -
Exercised during the year (Nos.} -
Expired during the year (Nos.) -
Sumrendered during the year (Nos.) 93,00.000
Outstanding as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.) -
Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2023 -
Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months) -
Remaining coniractual life (Weighted Months) -

{v) Dhani Services Limited - Employee Stock Benefit Scheme 2021 (*Scheme™) ("DSL-ESBS 2021").

The Scheme has been adopted and approved pursuant to: (2) a resolution of the Board of Direclors of the Ultimate Holding Company at ils meeting held on
06 March 2021; and (b) a special resolulion of the shareholders® of the Ultimate Holding Company passed through postal ballot on 15 April 2021, result of |
which were declared on 16 April 2021,

This Scheme comprises:

a.  Dhani Services Limited Employecs Stock Option Plan 2021 (“*ESOP Plan 2021™)
b.  Dhani Services Limited Employees Stock Purchase Plan 2021 (“ESP Plan 2021™)
¢. Dhani Services Limited Stock Appreciation Rights Plan 2021 (“S3ARs Plan 2021™)

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (the “SBER Regulations™), the Ullimate
Holding Company has set up “"Udaan - Employees Welfare Trust” (Trust) {or the purpose of implementation of the Scheme as per the terms of the respective
Schemes as aferesaid, The Trust, in compliance with the *SBEB Regulations”, is authorised 10 purchase upto an aggregate of 1,05,00,000 (One Crore Five
lakh) fully paid-up equity shares, being not more than 2% (Two percent) of the fully paid-up equity share capital of the Ultimate Holding Company as on the
date of approval of sharcholders, from the sccondary market. The Ultimate Holding Company has not granted any options/ SARs under the said Scheme as
at 31 March 2022.

« Charterey

Accountangs
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Note-36
Employce stock option schemes: (continued}

C.  Furir Valuation:

Tle details of the Fair value of the optiens / SARs as detetmined by an Independent firm of Chartered Aceountants, for the respective plans using the

Black-Scholes Merton Qption Pricing Modcl-

. Exercise price (3)

. Expected volatility *

. Option Life {Weighted Average) (in years)
. Expected Dividends yield

. Risk Froe Tnterest rate

. Fair value of the options (2}

hotn de W B e

Exercise price (I)

Expected volatility *

Expected forfeitere percentage on sach
Expected dividends yield

Risk free interest rate

Fair value of the options (T)

f ot

O o W

D,

* The expected volatility was determined based on historical volatility data.

. Exercise price ()

Expeceted volatility *

. Expected forfeiture pereentage on each
. Expected dividends yield

. Risk free interest rate

. Fair value of the options ()

* The expected volatilily was determined based on histacical volatility daa.

DSL ESOP - 2008

97,00,000 8,80,600 18,00,000
QOptions Options Regranted Opfions
Reoranted Regranted
24.15 254.85 68.00
42.97% 47 15% 69.05%
6 (4] 6
10.82% 1.10% 1.01%
T5% 7.56% 5.50%
431 130.05 34.58
DSL ESOP -- 2009
20,50,000 95,00,000 1,000,000
Options Opfions Rearanted _Options Resranted
31.35 16 219.65
48.96% 40. 1% 46.70%
il Nl Nil
6.86% 16.33% 127%
8.05% 7.45% 6.34%
9.39 1.38 10631
DSL ESQOP - DSL-ESBS 2020 DSL-ESBS 2019
2009
98,00,000 93,00,000 1,04,00,000
Options SARs SARs
68 250 250
69.05% 76.57% 68 45%
6 Nil Nil
1.01% 1.26% 1.71%
5.50% 4.36% 417%
3458 65.82 5549

DSL ESOP - 2008 & 2009

18,00,000 and 95,00,000

* The expected volatility was determined based on historicnl volatility data.

Shore bascd pnyment expense:

Options

1. Vesting Date 28-Jun-23 28-Jun-24 28-Jun-25 28-Jun-26 28-Jun-27

2. Exercise pnee () 30 30 30 30 30
3. Expected volatility * 70.92% 68.20% 66.66% 65.39% 63.19%
4. Expected forfeiture percenlage on each : Nil Nil Nil Wil Nil
5. Expected dividends yield 0.66% 0.66% 0.66% 0.66% 0.66%5
6. Risk free interest rate ~ 6.70% 687% 6.97% 705% 7.09%
7. Fair value of the options (&) 1569 17.00 18.15 19.09 19.69
8. Average Price 17.92

The Company has {reversed)/recognised of Share based payments expense lo employees in the statement of Profil and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

as follows:

Share based payments (reversal} / expense

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(1897} 17.86

(18,97 17.86
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0

(ii)

Note - 37
Employec henefits

Defined contribution plans
Provident fund

The Company pays fixed contribution to /dendent fund at predetermined rates 1o a registered /dendent fund administered by the Govenment of India,
which invests the funds in permitted securities. Both the Company and employees make predetermined contributions to the /dendent Fund. The
contributions are normally based on a certain proporiion of the employee's salary. During the year, the Company has recognized the following amounts
in the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of defined contribution plans and included in "Employee benefits expense”

Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31 Mareh 2023

31 March 2022

Employer’s Contribution made tos

(i employees’ provident fund organisation 0.51 0.53
(ii) employees' sinte insurance corporation - 0.01
(iii) lnbour welfare fund 0.002 0.00
Total 0.52 3,54

Defined benefit plins
Gratuity (unfunded)

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee is entitled to gratuity as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The
linbility of Gratuity is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation. Gains and losses through re-measutements of the net defined benefit
liability/(assel) are recognized in other comprehensive income and not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Risks associated with plan provisions

Salary inereases also increase the liability.

Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase role assumption in future valuntions will

Discount rate Reduction in discount rate in subscquent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

Mortality & disability  |Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities,

Withdrawals Actual wilhdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal mates at subsequem
1w

valuations can impact Plan’s liability.

Amount recognized in the balance sheet is as under:
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of abligation 58.73 87.60
Fair value of plun assets - -
Net ohligation recopnized in balance sheet as provision 58.73 87.66
Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss is as under:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current service cost 398 7.74
Past service cost including curtailment gains/losses - -
Gains or Losses on Non routine settlements - -
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 5.41 6.13
Interest income on plan assets - -
Net impact on profit (hefore 1ax) 9,39 13.87
Actuarial (gainYloss recopnized during the vear 3.16 (19.12)
[Amount recognized in the statement of profil and loss and other comprehensive income 12.58 (5.25)
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(iii)

(iv}

(vi)

Nete - 36 - Employee benefits (continued)

Movement in the present valuc ef defined benelit obligtion recognized in the babanee sheet §s as under:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of vear 87.66 88.98
Acquisition adjustment {nect) - -
Currenl service cost 398 7.74
Interest cost 541 6.13
Past service cost including curtailment gains/losses - -
Benefits paid (35.15) (34.30)
Actuarial loss/{gain) on cbligation

Actuarinl (gain)oss on arising from change in demographic assumption - -

Actuarial (gain¥loss on arising from change in financial assumption (.59 {4.95)

Actuarinl (painYioss on arising from experience adiustment (1.58) 24.06
Present value of defined benefit obligation us nt the end of the vear 58.73 37.66 |
Major eateprorics of plan assets (as pereentnpge of total plan assets):

As at Asat

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Government of India Securities
Slale Government securities
High Quality Corporate Bonds
Equity Shares of listed companies
Property

Funds Manzged by Insurer

Bank Balance

Total

Movement [n the plan asscts recopnized in the bitlnnce sheet is as under:

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Fair value of plan assels at beginning of year
Actual relurn on plan assets

Employer’s contribution

Benefils paid

Fair value of plan assels at the end of the yvear

-

Actuarial assumptions
Particulars Year ended Year cnded
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discounting rate 7.36% 1.18%
Future salary inerease 5.00% 5.00%
Retirement nge (years) 60.00 60.00
Withdrawal rete
Up 1o 30 years 3% 3%
From 31 1o 44 years 2% 2%
Above 44 years 1% 19%
|Weighted averape durttion 16.38 17.88

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability -100% of IALM (2012 -{4)

Gratuity is payable to the employees on deoth or resignation or on retirement at the atlainment of superannuation age. To provide for these

eventualities, the Actuary has used indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ullimate 1able.

Chartered

B | Accountants
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Note - 36 - Esaployee henefils (continued)

(vii) Sensitivity analysis for gratuity linbility

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

Impact of the change in discount rte

Present value of obligation at the end of the year
- Impact due to increase of 0.50 %

- Impact due to decrease of 0.50 %

Impact of the change in salary increase
Present valuc of obligation at the end of the year
- Impact due 1o increase of £.50 %

- Impact due 1o decrease of 0.50 %

58.73
3.7
4.11

58.73
4.18
(3.87)

87.66
(5.85)
6.40

87.66
6.51
16.00)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not matenial and henee impact of change due to these is not calculated

Sensilivitics as to rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expeetancy are not applicable.

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on rensonably possible changes of the respective assumptions oceurring ot the end of the
reporting period and may not be representative of the actual change. It is based on a change in the key assumptien while holding all other assumptions
constant. When caleulating 1he sensitivity to the assumption, the method (Projected Unit Credit Method) used to calenlate the ligbility recognized in
the balance sheet has been applicd. The methads and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change eompared with the

previous period.

Asat
31 Murch 2023

Asat
31 March 2022

(vii)|Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
. Years

0to 1 year
1102 vear
2 10 3 year
3 to4 year
4 to 5 year
5106 year
6 vear onwards

154
1.08
KRN
0.85
0.82
0.82
50.51

220
1.63
1.58
344
1.32
1.27
76.22

The employer best estimate of contributions expected 1o be patd during the annual period beginning after the Balance Sheet date, towards Gratuity is

R, 8,60 lakhs (31 March 2022; Rs, 14,35 lakhs)

B Compensated absences (non-funded)

Provision for unfunded compensated absences for all employees is based upon sctuarial valuations carricd out at the end of cvery financial year. Major
drivers in ectuarial assumptions, typically, are years of service and employee compensation. Commitments are actuarially determined using the
*Projected Unit Credit’ Method. Gains and losses on changes in actuarial assumgptions are accounted for in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Risks associnted with plan provisiens

Salary increases - P
g4 also increase the liability.

Actual salary increases will increase the Plan's liability. Inercase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will

Disecount rate . Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liabiiity.

Monrality & disability Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation ean impact the liabilities.

Withdrawals

valuations can impact Plan's liability.

Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent
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Note - 36 - Employec benefits (continued)

(i) Amount recognized in the balance sheet is as under:

Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of obligation 11.05 19.93
Fair value of plan asscts - -
Net obligation recognized in balance sheet as provision 11.05 19,93
(if) Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss js as under:
Particulars Year ented Year cuded
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current service cost 117 256
Total Actuarial {Gain)/Loss on Obligation (10.97) (4.86)
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 0.92 1.53
Amount recognized in the stitement of profit and loss (8.88) {0.77)
(i) Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligntion recognized in the balance sheet is as under:
Particulurs Yenr ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of year 19.93 21.10
Acquisition adjustment- {net) - -
Current service cost 1.17 256
Interest cost 0.92 1.53
Past service cost including curtailment gains/losses - -
Benefits paid - (0.40)
Actuarial loss/(gain) on chligation
Actuarial (gain)/oss on arising from change in demographic assumplion - -
Actuarinl {gain)/loss on arising from change in financial assumption (0.33) (1.23)
Actuarial {zain)/loss on arising [rom experience adiustment 110.64) {3.63)
Present value of defined henefit oblipation as at the end of the vear 11.05 19.93
{iv) Actuarinl assuntptions
Particulars Year ended Year cnded
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discounting rale 7.36% 7.81%
Future salary increase 5.00% 5.00%
Retirement age (years) 60.00 60.00
Weighted average duration of PBO 16.28 17.88
Withdrawal rate
Up to 30 years 3.00% 3.00%
From 31 1o 44 years 2.00% 2.00%
Above 44 years 1.00% 1.00%
Leave
Leave availment rate 5.00% 5.00%
Leave lapse rate while in service Nil Nil
Leave lopse rate on exil Nil Nil
Leave cncashment rate while in service Nil Nil

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability «100% ol 1ALM (2012 -14)[Previous year 100% of [ALM {2012 - 14))
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v}

{vi)

Note - 36 - Employee benefits (continued)

Sensitivity annlysis for compensnted absences

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Impaet of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 11.05 19.93
- Impact due to increase ol 0.50 % {0.76) (145)
- Impact due to deerease of 0.50 % 0.81 1.56
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 11.05 19.93
- Impact due 1o increase of 0.50 % 0.83 1.60
- Impact due 1o decrease of 0.50 % 10.77) (1.46)

Sensitivitics due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change due to these is not calculated.

Sensitivities as to rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of incrense of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not applicable.

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respeciive assumptions aecurring at the end of the
reporting period and may not be representative of the actual change. It is based on o change in the key assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. When calculating the sensilivity to the assumption, the method (Projected Unit Credit Method) used to calculate the liability recognized in
the balance sheet has been applied. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared with the
previous period,

Asat Asat

Maturity profile of defined benelii oblization 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
years

0101 year 029 . 0.53
1102 year 021 038
2103 year 0.50 0.37
3104 year 0.17 0.65
4 o 5 year 816 0.32
5106 year 0.16 0.31
6 vear onwards 9.56 17.37

The employer best estimate of contributions expected to be paid during the annual period beginning after the Bafance Sheet date, towards compensated
absences is Rs, 1,72 lakhs (31 March 2022: Rs. 3.82 lakhs)

The Indion Parlinment has approved the Code on Social Securily, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the company lowards Provident Fund
and Gratvity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has
invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under nctive considemtion by the Ministry. The Company will assess the impact and its evaluation
ance the subject rules are notified and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the peried in which the Code becomes effective and
the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.

(This space has been intentionally left blant)
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Note -38

As per the best estimnte of the management, no provision is required 10 be made as per Indian Accounting Standard 37 (Ind AS 37} - Provisions. Contingent Linbilitics and Contingent Assets as
specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) rend together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013 (as amended} in respect of any present obligation as a
result of a past event 1hnt could lend to a probable autflow ol resources, which would be required to seitls the obligation.

Note -39
Bigures for the previous year have been reprouped! re-arranged wherever considered necessary 1o confinm to the figures presented in the current yeor.

Note -40
The Company has not entered inte any derivalive contracts during the year. The Company does not have any foreign currency exposures as 2t 31 March 2023 (Previous year Rs. Nil).

Note =41 .
Claims agninst the Company net acknewledged as debts on of pending litigation: Rs. 57.07 Iakhs (Previous year: Rs. Nil),

The Company in the ordinary course of business, Ias various cnses pending in different authoritics and courts, however, the management docs not expect any unfavourable outcome resulting in
material adverse effect on the financial position ol the Company.

Note - 42
Capital commitments cutstanding as at 31 March 2023 Rs, Nil {Previous year Rs. 15,780.76 lakhs) nel of capital advances Nil {Previous year Rs. 3,825.14 Iokhs).
Note - 43
Disclosures required under Scetion 22 of the Micro, Small and Metium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
Asat As ot
Particulars 31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
Amount {Rs.) Amount {Rs.)
(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year Nil Nil
(i) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as ot the end of the accounting year Nil Nil
(iii} The amount ol interest paid along with the amounis of the payment made to the supplics bevond the appointed day Nil Nil
(iv) The amount of interest due and pavable for the year Nil Nil
{v) The amount of inlerest accrzed and remainitgz unpaid at the end of the accounting year il Nil
(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable cven in the succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as nbove are actually
paid Nil Nil

The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to Uic extemt such parties hove been identificd on Uic basis of informntion available with the Company.
This ks been relied upon by the auditars,

Note =44
There are o borrowing ¢os1s 10 be capilalized ns at 31 Mareh 2023 {Previoos year: Rs. Nil).

Note -5 .
Segment reporting )

The Company operates in a single reportable segment i.e. "Underwriting/distribution of real estate projects on behalf of developers and related services™, wlhich has similar risks and retums for the
purpose of Ind AS 108 "Operating segments™, is considered 1o be the enly reportable business segment. The Company derives its revenues primarily from underwriting/distribution of real estate
projects on behalf of developers and its customers across India. Further, the Company is operating in India which is considered as a single geopraphical segment. Operating segments are reportcci ina
nianner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker {CODM). The CODM's function is to allocate the resources of the entity and nssess the pcri'ommncc of the
operating segment of the Company. All assets of the Company ate domiciled in ndia.
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Nate =46
Assets Hedged as security
The camying

of assets pledged/hypothecnted as security are:

Particulars

As ot
31 March 2023

Asnt
31 Munrch 2022

Vehicles - 10.23
Fixed deposits 300.00 300.00
Total assels pledeed as security 300,00 310.23

Note -47

Disclosures in respect of Ind AS - 24 *Related Party Disclosures” as specified under Scction 133 of the Compnnies Act, 2013 (*the Act™) rend together with the Companies {Indian Accounting

Standards) Rules, 2015 (a5 amended):

(=) Detnils of relnted parties:

Nuture of relationship

[Names of veluted parties

(i) Where control exists

Liltimate Holding Company

Dhani Services Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Ventures Limited)

(i) Stpnificant Tr ti

with Related Portics during the year ended 31 March 2023:

Holding Company Dhani Loans and Services Limited (Fornerly known as Indiabulls Consumer Finance Limited }
Dhani Healtheare Limited
Fellow Subsidiary Company * Evinos Buildwell Limited
Jindinbulls Distribution Services Lintited
* with whom 15 have been | into during the year

Entitlcs under

Ultimante Holding

Nature of Transaciions Holding Company Total
comman control Compuny
Finance
Inter Corporate Deposit Given 17.870.25 - - 17.870.25
{Maximum Balance OQutstanding during the year)
12,219.50 - - 12.219.50
Emter Corporate Depasit Taken - - 15.00 15.00
{Maximum Balance Quistanding during the year) - - - -
Income - -
; ; 1.463.16 - - 1.463.16
Interest income on Inter Corporale Deposils 1137 - - 34139
Expenses - -
Interest expense on Intee Corporate Deposits - 0.003 0.005
Reimbursement of Expenses paid (Rent and effice maintenance) - 700,77 . 0047
Note: Fgures i nalics relate 1o the previous year
{c) Outstanding as at 31 Muarch 2023:
Nature of Transnetion Entities under Ultimate Holding Total
commen control Contpany
Finance Yenr
Asat 31 Morch 17.870.25 - 17.870.25
Inter Corporate Deposits Given 2025
As at 31 March
2022 12.219.50 - 12.219.50
As ‘“,3;,,;'“”" - 15.00 15.00
Inter Corporate Deposils Taken ool 31 March - - -
2022
Note: Figures in stalics relate to the previous year
{D) Detail of loans are granteil 1o pramoters, directors, KMPs and the related pariies
As 0131 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Amount af loan or

Percentage to the

Amount of loan or

Percentage to the total

Type of Borrower ndvance in the tatal Loans and advance in the nature of  |Loans and Advances
nature of loan Advanees .
N . loan outstanding in the nature of loans
outsianding in the nature of lonns)
Prometer - 0.00% - 0.003%
Directors - 0.00% - 0.00%
KMPs . 0.00% - 0.00%|
Relntcd partics 17,870.25 89.26%) 12,219.50 B4.35%

In a2ecordance with Ind AS 24, disclosures in respect of transactions with identificd related partics are given enly for such period during which such relalionships existed. Related Party relationships are
given above are as identilied by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.
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Note - 48
Leases:

The Company had cntered inta lense contracts for various office premises used in its operations. The Company’s obligations under its leases were secured by the lessor’s litle to the leased assels.

Genemlly, the Company was restricted froms assipning and subleasing the leased nssets.

The Company nlso had certain leascs of office premises with lease terms of 12 months ar less. The Company applics the *sliort-tenn lease® recognition exemptions for these leases.

Leases are shown as fellows in the Company’s balance sheet and Statement of profit and loss:

Set out below are ihe camying amounts of right-of~usc assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Following are the changes in flie currying value of vipht of use nssets (" Roll Asset"') for the year ended March 31, 2023;

Particulars Asat Asat

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balonce - 2.58
Additions during the year - -
Deletion - {7.00)
Amortized during the year* - {0.58)
Closing balnnce - -
*The agpregate depreciation expense on Right of usc assets is included under deprecimion and amoriizalion expense in the Siatement of Profit and Loss.
The following is the movement in lease linbilities during the year ended March 31, 2023:
Particulars Asat Asat

31 Murch 2023 3] March 2022
Opening balance - 8,77
Additions during the year - -
Deletions - (8.18)
Finance cost aceruedd during the year - 0.07
Payment of lense [inbilities - {D.68)

Clasing balance

The following is the incame from subleasing right-of-use asscts during the yvear ended Muech 31, 2023:

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Faor the year ended

Income [rom subleasing right-of-use assets

31 March 2022

Tatal

The following is the Gain/(Loss) on termination of leases during the vear ended Mareh 31, 2023:

Particulnrs

For the year ended
31 dMarch 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Goin on termiiation of leases

1.17

‘Total

1.17

The table below provides details regarding the contractunl maturities of lease Habilitics os at March 31, 2023 an an undiscounted basls:

Particulars

Asat
31 March 2023

Asat |
31 March 2022

Williin One year

Oune to Five years

Maore than Five years

Rental expense recorded for short-term beases is Rs, Nil (Previons year Rs 99.79 Lakhs) for the year ended 31 Mareh 2023,

Note - 49

Expeuses apportiened by the Ulimate Holding Company/Helding Company/Fellow Subsidiary Company to the Campany (excluding goods and services 1wservice tay), during the year ended 31

March 2022 include:

Chartercd

Accountants

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Helding Compuny
- Rent (including office mnintenance) - 100.47
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Note - 50
Accoun{ing Ratios
Asat Asat
Particulars Numeratar Denominator 31 March 2022 31 Mareeh 2021 Variance % |Remarks
|Primarily due to increase in
short lerm inter-company
(a) Current Ratio Current Asscts Current Linbilitics 151.47 45.72 231%|loans given o related parlies
during financial year ended
March 31, 2023.
Due to increase in short term
S . . yq0. [POTOWINES  during  the
() Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Total Equity 0.0006 0,00005 1312% financial year cnded March
31, 2023
Primarily due te increase in
(¢} Debt Service Coverage Ratio Eamings available for debifpy 1) e vice 3022 203782 .107,|EBITDA  and  borrowings
service during financial year ended
March 31, 2023,
) . Avesage Shore Due to profit canted during
(d) Return an Equity Ratio Net profitf /(loss) afier tax Bolder's equity 222% -16.598% =113%]|the financinl year ended
March 31, 2023
. Average value of L PN
(¢} Inventory Tumover Ratic Cost of poods sold N = 0%
invenlory - -
Bue 1o decrease in trade
(f) Trade Receivable Tumover Ratio | WNet credil sales "‘"‘T"“ trade 020 0.28 -29% rccc.:mblc ,md sale o f
. receivables ' serviees during the financial
year ended March 31, 2023,
(g) Trade Payable Turnover Ratio Net credit purchases Average trade NA. NA. N.A. N.A.
payables
Due to lower revenue and
(1) Net Capital Turnover Ratio Revenue lrom operitions Avc-mgc working 0.02 0.09 g9 |'MErCASE In Average wnrk‘:ng
capital copital during the financial
vear ended March 31, 2023,
Due to profit earned during)
(i) Net Profit Ratio Net profit/ /loss) after lax |[Revenue 177.84% «513.35% -135%|the finoncial year ended
March 31, 2023 i
, . Due to profit eamed during|
(j} Return on Capital Employed Fammings before intorest Capital Employed 1.87% -16.93% -111%|ihe  finaneial yenr  ended
and tax
March 31, 2023
(k) Retum on Investment !ncomc gencrated from :A\'cmgc cost of NA. NA. N.A. N.A.
invesuments investments
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Note -51
(i) The Company lins not received any funds from any person(s) or entity(ics), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
Company shatl;

{a) directly or indireetly lend or invest in other persons or enlitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on bzhalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{b} provide ony puarantee, security or the like 1o or on behall of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested any funds from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ( Intermediarics) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
ollierwise) that the Intermediaries shall;

(n) dircctly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons ar entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or an behalf of the Comnpany (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantec, sceurity or the like to or on behalf of the Ullimate Beneficinries.

Notc = 52 -
There are no proceedings initiated o7 pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, £988 (45 of 1988) during the financial years
ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

Note - 53
The Company has not tuken any borrowings from banks or finnncial institutions on the basis of security of current asscts during the financinl years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

Note -54

The Company has not been declared a wilfisl defaulter by any bank ar financial Institutfon or other lender during the financial years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

Note - 55 '

The Company has not entered into any transactions with companics struck ofT under section 248 ef'tlie Campanies Act, 2013 ar section 560 of Companies Act. 1956 during the financial years caded 31
Murch 2023 and 31 March 2022.

Note - 56
There are o charges or satisfaction of ¢harges yet to be registered with Registrar of Comipanics by the Company during the financial years ended 31 Minrch 2023 and 31 March 2022.

Note - 57
The Compnny did not enter into any transactions which are not recorded in the books of accounts and has been surrendered or disclosed aig income during 1he financial years ended 31 March 2023 and
31 March 2022 in the tax assessmenis under the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Nole - 58
The Company has not tradsd or invested in erypto currency or virtual currency during the financial years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,
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Note - 59
In respect of amounts as mentioned under Seetion 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, there were no dues required 1o be eredited to the Investor Edueation and Protection Fund as on 31 March 2023
{Previous yezar : Rs, Nil).
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